CITY OF SUSANVILLE
66 North Lassen Street ¢ Susanville CA
Kathie Garnier, Mayor
Joseph Franco, Mayor pro tem
Mendy Schuster * Kevin Stafford * Brian R. Wilson

SUSANVILLE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AGENCY  SUSANVILLE MUNICIPAL ENERGY CORPORATION  SUSANVILLE
PUBLIC FINANCING AUTHORITY

Susanville City Council
Regular Meeting ¢ City Council Chambers
December 20, 2017 - 6:00 p.m.

Call meeting to order Next Resolution No. 17-5463
Roll call of Councilmembers present Next Ordinance No. 17-1013
1 APPROVAL OF AGENDA: (Additions and/or Deletions)

2 PUBLIC COMMENT REGARDING CLOSED SESSION ITEMS (if any): Any person may

address the Council at this time upon any subject for discussion during Closed Session.

3 CLOSED SESSION:
B PUBLIC EMPLOYMENT — Pursuant to Government Code Section §54957
1 City Administrator
A CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS - pursuant to Government Code Section
§54957.6
1 Agency Negotiator: Dan Newton
Bargaining Unit: Fire Fighters

4 RETURN TO OPEN SESSION: (recess if necessary)
. Reconvene in open sessfion at 7:00 p.m.
s Pledge of allegiance
. Report any changes to agenda

B Report any action out of Closed Session

. Moment of Silence or Thought for the Day: Dan Newton

. Proclamations, awards or presentations by the City Council:
5 BUSINESS FROM THE FLOOR:

Any person may address the Council at this time upon any subject on the agenda or not on
the agenda within the jurisdiction of the City Council. However, comments on items on the
agenda may be reserved until the item is discussed and any matter not on the agenda that
requires action will be referred to staff for a report and action at a subsequent meeting.
Presentations are subject to a five-minute limit

171220.0gd



10

11
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14
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CONSENT CALENDAR:

All matters listed under the Consent Calendar are considered to be routine by the City
Council. There will be no separate discussion on these items. Any member of the public or
the City Council may request removal of an item from the Consent Calendar to be considered

separately.
A Approve minutes from the City Council’'s November 15, 2017 meeting
B Approve vendor warrants numbered 101965 through 200000 for a total of

$522,597.60 including $155,269.12 in payroll warrants

PUBLIC HEARINGS: No business.

COUNCIL DISCUSSION/ANNOUNCEMENTS:
Commission/Committee Reports:

NEW BUSINESS:

A Consider development of lease agreement with property owner to lease the Bank of
America parking lot for public use

B Consider Resolution No. 17-5462 accepting the City of Susanville's Audited
Financial Statements for the Fiscal Year ending June 30, 2016

C Consider Local Sales and Use Tax/Transactional Use Tax Increase

D Consider approval of Lassen County Board of Supervisor / Susanville City Council

joint meeting scheduled for January 23, 2018

SUSANVILLE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AGENCY: No business.

SUSANVILLE MUNICIPAL ENERGY CORPORATION: No business.

CONTINUING BUSINESS: No business.

CITY ADMINISTRATOR’'S REPORTS:
A Susanville Deer Population Report

COUNCIL ITEMS:
A AB1234 travel reports:

ADJOURNMENT:

s The next reqular City Council meeting will be held on January 3, 2018 at 6:00 p.m.

Reports and documents relating to each agenda item are on file in the Office of the City Clerk and are
available for public inspection during normal business hours and at the meeting. These reports and
documents are also available at the City’s website www.cityofsusanville.org, unless there were
systems problems posting to the website.

Accessibility: An interpreter for the hearing-impaired may be made available upon request to the
City Clerk seventy-two hours prior to a meeting. A reader for the vision-impaired for purposes of
reviewing the agenda may be made available upon request to the City Clerk. The location of this
meeting is wheelchair-accessible.
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I, Gwenna MacDonald, certify that I caused to be posted notice of the regular meeting
scheduled for December 20, 2017 in the areas designated on December 15, 2017.

Gwenna MacDonald, City Clerk

171220.0gd



AGENDA ITEM NO. 6A

Reviewed by: {K Interim City Administrator X_ Motion Only
City Attorney Public Hearing
Resolution
Ordinance
Information
Submitted By: Gwenna MacDonald, City Clerk
Action Date: December 20, 2017
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM
SUBJECT: Minutes of the City Council's November 15, 2017 meeting
PRESENTED BY: Gwenna MacDonald, City Clerk
SUMMARY: Attached for the Council's review are the minutes of the City
Council’'s November 15, 2017 meeting.
FISCAL IMPACT: None.
ACTION REQUESTED: Motion to waive oral reading and approve minutes of City

Council's November 15, 2017 meeting.

ATTACHMENTS: Minutes: November 15, 2017



SUSANVILLE CITY COUNCIL
Regular Meeting Minutes
November 15, 2017- 6:00 p.m.

Meeting was called to order at 6:00 p.m. by Mayor Garnier.

Roll call of Councilmembers present: Brian Wilson, Kevin Stafford, Mendy Schuster, Mayor pro tem Franco
and Kathie Garnier.

Staff present: Dan Newton, Interim City Administrator; Jessica Ryan, City Attorney and Gwenna MacDonald,
City Clerk.

1 APPROVAL OF AGENDA:

Mr. Newton noted that an amended Item 9A had been circulated with copies made available to the public,
and requested the removal of Item 9D.

Motion by Mayor pro tem Franco, second by Councilmember Stafford, to approve the agenda as revised;
motion carried unanimously. Ayes: Franco, Stafford, Wilson, Schuster and Garnier.

2 PUBLIC COMMENT REGARDING CLOSED SESSION ITEMS: None.
3 CLOSED SESSION: At 6:02 p.m. the Council entered into Closed Session to discuss the following:
A CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS - pursuant to Government Code Section
§54957.6
1 Agency Negotiator:  Dan Newton
Bargaining Unit: Firefighters
B CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9:

Existing litigation (2)

4 RETURN TO OPEN SESSION:
At 7:00 the City Council reconvened in Open Session.

Staff present: Dan Newton, Interim City Administrator; Jessica Ryan, City Attorney; James Moore, Fire Chief;
Dan Gibbs, Acting Public Works Director; Sergeant Kelley Merritt; Deborah Savage, Finance Manager and
Gwenna MacDonald, City Clerk.

Mr. Newton reported that prior to Closed Session, the City Council approved the agenda with an amended
9A, the removal of Item 9D, and he requested Item 13A be moved up for consideration after the Consent
Calendar. The City Council met in Closed Session and the City Counci! provided direction to staff but there
was no reportable action taken.

Daniel Gibbs offered the Thought of the Day

5 BUSINESS FROM THE FLOOR: No comments.
6 CONSENT CALENDAR: Mayor Garnier reviewed the items on the Consent Calendar:
A Approve minutes from the City Council's October 4, 2017 meeting
B Approve vendor warrants numbered 101653 through 101779 for a total of $405,696.41

including $102,386.24 in payroll warrants
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Motion by Mayor pro tem Franco, second by Councilmember Stafford, to approve the Consent Calendar;
motion carried unanimously. Ayes: Franco, Stafford, Wilson, Schuster and Garnier.

13A  Bank of America Parking Lot Report Mr. Newton explained that with the closing of the Bank of
America, there is concern among members of the public that the owner may close the parking lot for public
use. Staff was contacted by the president of the Historic Uptown Susanville Association (HUSA) requesting
support from the City of Susanville and opening a dialog regarding the possibility of partnering to lease the
lot.

Mayor Garnier asked if she should recuse herself from the discussion since she owns a building in the HUSA
district.

Ms. Ryan responded that this is just a discussion and no action is being taken, however it is normally her
recommendation that if a councilmember feels like they want to recuse themselves from discussion of an
item, then they should.

Mayor Garnier opted to remain in the Chambers to hear the discussion.

Melanie Westbrook, HUSA President, stated that the Bank of America parking lot plays a vital role in
keeping the uptown alive. If the owner chooses to chain off the parking lot, it will have a negative impact
on several uptown businesses, and she wants to keep the dialog open and explore possibilities that would
include possibly leasing the lot from the current owner.

David Teeter, Board of Supervisors, suggested that maintenance of the lot may be an issue for the owner,
and including the maintenance needs in the discussion may be helpful.

Julia Gussett commented that liability for the use of the lot could be a concern for the owner, and that
maybe the City could help with that aspect.

Mayor Garnier stated that HUSA has to be involved in the process, since the District’s focus has been about
parking in the uptown.

Mr. Teeter concurred, and added that in past, that HUSA does not carry the same weight as the City in the
negotiation process.

Mayor pro tem Franco asked if it would be appropriate to engage the owner in those types of discussion
before any plan is in place.

Councilmember Wilson stated that he doesn't have a problem with opening the dialog but if that function
should be initiated by HUSA then they should take the lead on it.

There was a general discussion about parking in the uptown, maintenance cost and responsibilities, and the
need to act before the lot is chained off and restricted for public use.

Mr. Newton explained that the purpose of bringing the item forward was to determine what level of

participation does the City Council want the City Administrator to have in the process, and that directing
staff to assist HUSA in the process of opening a dialog with the owner would be appropriate.
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It was the consensus of the City Council to move forward with the process as described.

7 PUBLIC HEARINGS: No Business.

8. COUNCIL DISCUSSION/ANNOUNCEMENTS: Commission/Committee reports: none

9. NEW BUSINESS:

9A Consider Resolution No. 17-5436 approving Cooperative Agreement with Susanville Indian
Rancheria Housing Authority Mr. Newton reported that a revised agreement was distributed to the
Council and provided to the public. The Agreement provides a mechanism by which the Susanville Indian
Rancheria (SIR) can provide affordable housing for low-income families through the acquisition of three
parcels located within the City limits. The Native American Housing Assistance and Self-Determination Act
(NAHASDA) prohibits the use of grant funds for rental of lease-purchase housing unless the local
government enters into a cooperative agreement to address property taxes. The cooperative agreement
provides for the City to receive $150 per dwelling unit as an in-lieu-of-taxes payment.

Ms. Ryan reviewed the change to Item 8, page 3, explaining the change was not substantive and it
supersedes the prior agreement on this subject matter. This agreement does not affect the existing
agreement the City has with SIR to provide Fire and Police services.

Mr. Phil Bush, Project Manager, explained that the SIR Housing Authority Commission has not had an
opportunity to review the agreement with the revisions made. The agreement is between the Housing
Authority and City, and he requested that the City Council table consideration of the item. The Agreement
is between the City and Housing Authority, not any other Department at the Rancheria, which several are
listed in section 8.

Ms. Ryan requested that the City Council review the information, ask any questions and provide feedback
on the Agreement so that further research could be conducted, if necessary.

There was a general discussion regarding the welfare exemption and the requirement that the SIR Housing
Authority has to meet a minimum threshold established by the government to rent to low-income tenants,
and report every year to the Tax Assessor in order to meet the tax-exempt status for the properties. Mr.
Bush explained the process to add land to the Trust, and the property in question is owned by the Federal
Government and held in trust for SIR. He requested that the City Council table consideration of the item
until such time as the language changes have been submitted to the Housing Authority Commission for
review and comment, or else consider and adopt the original agreement that was circulated with the agenda
and available on the website.

Chief King enters the meeting and replaces Sergeant Merritt at the staff table.

It was the consensus of the City Council to table the item until the SIR Housing Authority Commission had
a chance to review the revised Agreement.

9B Consider Resolution No. 17-5451 approving the release of Skyline/Highway 139 Traffic
Signal Mitigation Fees to Lassen County for reimbursement of local funds expended during the
skyline Road East construction project Ms. Savage reported that at the October 18, 2017 meeting, the
City Council considered and accepted the Annual Mitigation Report. The discussion included the collection
of mitigation fees for the construction of a traffic signal at the intersection of Skyline and Highway 139. The
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City has collected $18,311 in mitigation fees charged to developers in the Skyline Terrace area as per
Resolution No. 93-2473. This fees have been collected since 1993 and the traffic signal was installed in
2008-2009 as part of the Skyline Road East project. Lassen County utilized Federal STIP (State Transportation
Improvement Project) funding for 85.40 percent of the project, with State of California and the Local County
Roads Funds providing the 14.60 percent local match funds. The final detail estimate of cost for the traffic
signal and lighting for the project was $251,000, with a Federal STIP reimbursement of $214,354 (85.40
percent) and the local match of $36,646 (14.60 percent). The fees collected by the City can be turned over
to the County to reimburse the cost of the local match on the installation of the traffic signal.

Councilmember Wilson stated that it was appropriate to turn the money over to the County.

Motion by Councilmember Stafford, second by Mayor pro tem Franco, to approve Resolution No. 17-5451;
motion carried unanimously. Ayes: Stafford, Franco, Wilson, Schuster and Garnier.

9C Consider Resolution No. 17-5452 authorizing the Interim City Administrator to execute an
agreement with Mike Engman Company for completing emergency road repair work at the Bagwell
and Cady Springs sites and amending the Public Works Water Operations budget accordingly Mr.
Gibbs reported that the access roads for the Bagwell and Cady Springs sites are in need of immediate
repairs. Sections of the roads have eroded and deposited material in areas where it is blocking drainage
ditches and culverts and impacting City facilities. Personnel from the Water Operations division visit the
sites weekly, regardless of weather conditions, to check a variety of parameters to ensure that the water
sources are functioning safely and operating at levels suitable to the City's demand. It is critical that the
access roads are safe and navigable in all types of weather to staff. The City solicited bids, and received 3
from local contractors capable of completing the work. The firm of Mike Engman Company submitted the
lowest responsible bid in the amount of $14,300. The Public Works Water Operations fund currently has
approximately $202,564 in cash available for any needed facility related maintenance and improvements.
The estimated cost for this project is $14,300 with an additional $1,200 for extra work if deemed necessary
by the City which includes all labor, contractor supplied materials and equipment to complete the work.

Motion by Mayor pro tem Franco, second by Councilmember Schuster, to approve Resolution No. 17-5452;
motion carried unanimously. Ayes: Franco, Schuster, Wilson, Stafford and Garnier.

9D Consider Resolution No. 17-5453 authorizing the Interim City Administrator to execute an
agreement with Crazy J's Concrete Inc. for repair to the easterly retaining wall in Pancera Plaza on South
Gay Street and amending the Public Works Streets budget accordingly

Item pulled from consideration.

9E Consider Resolution No. 17-5455 approving and authorizing signatories on the City of
Susanville Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) account Ms. Savage explained that the City Council
adopted Resolution No. 13-4981 which authorizes certain City employees to approve and sign for cash
transfers to and from LAIF. With recent staffing changes, it is necessary to update the list with new positions
that are authorized to perform these transfers. The adopted resolution established the positions of City
Administrator and Assistant to the City Administrator. Staff is requesting the position of Finance Manager
be added to the list of authorized signatories.
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Motion by Councilmember Wilson, second by Councilmember Stafford, to approve Resolution No. 17-5455;
motion carried unanimously. Ayes: Wilson, Stafford, Franco, Schuster and Garnier.

9F Consider Resolution No. 17-5456 terminating Hangar #13 Land Lease Agreement with Virgil
Buechler and authorizing execution of Ground Lease Agreement with Paul Clark for Hangar #13 Mr.
Newton reported that on October 4, 2017, the City Council was presented with the option of purchasing
Hangar #13, owned by Virgil Buechler, for the amount of $25,000.00. City Councit declined the purchase of
the hangar. Mr. Clark has now taken possession of the Hangar and is required to execute a new Airport
Ground Lease Agreement for Hangar #13.

Motion by Councilmember Stafford, second by Councilmember Wilson, to decline purchase of the hangar;
motion carried unanimously. Ayes: Stafford, Wilson, Schuster, Franco and Garnier.

9G Consider Resolution No. 17-5454 granting subpoena power in matters under the jurisdiction
of the City Council Mr. Newton reported that the resolution for consideration would grant Subpoena
Power in matters under the jurisdiction of the City Council. The authority is set forth in Government Code
Section 37014, and it requires a resolution or ordinance passed by the governing body to allow the Council
to exercise this power, which provides the ability to require the attendance of witnesses or production of
books or other documents for evidence or testimony in any action or proceeding pending before it.

Mayor pro tem Franco asked for an example of when this situation would be necessary.

Ms. Ryan explained that the authority would not lie solely with the ability of the City Council to subpoena
witnesses or information, but if the City undertakes an investigation and is considering a matter that would
require hearing a case before it, then the parties involved would have the ability to subpoena records or
information that would be necessary for their case. It is not limited to the requirement that people appear
to testify but includes the production of information or records that may be related to the matter before
Council.

Councilmember Wilson asked what the process for issuance would be.

Ms. Ryan explained the process of issuance as set forth in the proposed resolution. The City Council would
be required to seek the advice of the City Attorney and approve the issuance in either open session or
closed, depending on the nature of the proceedings. The subpoena would be issued by the City Clerk to
parties or attorneys representing parties that appeared in matters under the jurisdiction of the City Council.
The City Clerk would be required to seek the advice of the City Attorney prior to issuance of the subpoena
to make the determination regarding the request.

There was a general discussion regarding the delivery process and resulting expense to the City. The Council
discussed limiting the power to an issue that was of immediate consideration, and Ms. Ryan discussed the
importance of granting the parties involved the opportunity for due process, and the ability of the City to
issue a subpoena is an important part of that process. It was the consensus of the Council to specify in the
resolution that the authority to issue subpoenas as granted by Government Code Section 37014 would be
limited to a specific upcoming investigation.

Motion by Councilmember Stafford, second by Councilmember Wilson, to approve Resolution No. 17-5454
with the revision as discussed to limit the authority to one upcoming case; motion carried. Ayes: Stafford,
Wilson and Schuster. No: Franco and Garnier.
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10 SUSANVILLE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AGENCY: No business.

11 SUSANVILLE MUNICIPAL ENERGY CORPORATION: No business.

12 CONTINUING BUSINESS: No business.

13 CITY ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORTS:
13A Bank of America Parking Lot Report

14 COUNCIL ITEMS:

14A  AB1234 travel reports:

15 ADJOURNMENT:
Motion by Mayor pro tem Franco, second by Councilmember Stafford, to adjourn the meeting. Ayes:

Franco, Stafford, Wilson, Schuster and Garnier.

Meeting adjourned at 8:43 p.m.

Kathie Garnier, Mayor

Respectfully submitted by

Approved on:

Gwenna MacDonald, City Clerk
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AGENDA ITEM NO. _6B

Reviewed by: Ek Interim City Administrator _X_ Motion only
____City Attorney ____ Public Hearing
____ Resolution
____ Ordinance
_ Information
Submitted by: Deborah Savage, Finance Manager
Action Date: December 20, 2017

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM

SUBJECT: Vendor and Payroll Warrants
PRESENTED BY: Deborah Savage, Finance Manager

SUMMARY: Warrants dated November 22, 2017, through December 8, 2017 numbered
101965, and 200000 through 200110.

FISCAL IMPACT: Accounts Payable vendor warrants totaling $ 367,328.48 plus $ 155,269.12
in payroll warrants, for a total of $ 522,597.60.

ACTION
REQUESTED: Motion to receive and file.

ATTACHMENTS: Payments by vendor and transmittal check registers.
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City of Susanville Check Register - Transmittals for Agenda-POSITIVE PAY Page: 1

Report Dates: 11/18/2017-12/1/2017 Dec 07, 2017 11:37AM

Report Criteria:

Transmittal checks included

[Report].Check Number = 727-730,200104-200109
Pay Period  Journal Check Check Payee

Date Code Issue Date  Number Payee ID GL Account Amount
12/01/2017 CDPT 12/06/2017 727 CITY OF SUSANVILLE PA 1 7650-2203-1 6,473.10-
12/01/2017 CDPT 12/06/2017 727 CITY OF SUSANVILLE PA 1 7650-2203-1 6,473.10-
12/01/2017 CDPT 12/06/2017 727 CITY OF SUSANVILLE PA 1 7650-2203-1 2,103.99-
12/01/2017 CDPT 12/06/2017 727 CITY OF SUSANVILLE PA 1 7650-2203-1 2,103.99-
12/01/2017 CDPT 12/06/2017 727 CITY OF SUSANVILLE PA 1 7650-2203-1 15,451.05-
12/01/2017 CDPT 12/06/2017 728 EMPLOYMENT DEV. DEP 6 7650-2203-1 4,449.02-
12/01/2017 CDPT 12/06/2017 729 EMPLOYMENT DEV DEP 7 7650-2203-1 1,190.86-
12/01/2017 CDPT 12/07/2017 730 P.E.R.S. 8 1000-421-10- .58-
12/01/2017 CDPT 12/07/2017 730 P.E.R.S. 8 7650-2203-1 2,793.44-
12/01/2017 CDPT 12/07/2017 730 P.E.R.S. 8 7650-2203-1 5,085.74-
12/01/2017 CDPT 12/07/2017 730 P.ER.S. 8 7650-2203-1 1,235.92-
12/01/2017 CDPT 12/07/2017 730 P.ER.S. 8 7650-2203-1 2,124.43-
12/01/2017 CDPT 12/07/2017 730 P.E.R.S. 8 7650-2203-1 675.60-
12/01/2017 CDPT 12/07/2017 730 P.E.R.S. 8 7650-2203-1 1,523.65-
12/01/2017 CDPT 12/07/2017 730 P.ER.S. 8 7650-2203-1 68.84-
12/01/2017 CDPT 12/07/2017 730 P.ER.S. 8 7650-2203-1 92.63-
12/01/2017 CDPT 12/07/2017 730 P.E.R.S. 8 7650-2203-1 85.45-
12/01/2017 CDPT 12/07/2017 730 P.E.R.S. 8 7650-2203-1 1,694.13-
12/01/2017 CDPT 12/07/2017 730 P.E.R.S. 8 7650-2203-1 1,770.85-
12/01/2017 CDPT 12/07/2017 730 P.E.R.S. 8 7650-2203-1 1,885.57-
12/01/2017 CDPT 12/07/2017 730 P.ER.S. 8 7650-2203-1 1,965.90-
12/01/2017 CDPT 12/07/2017 730 P.E.R.S. 8 7650-2203-1 834.26-
12/01/2017 CDPT 12/07/2017 730 P.E.R.S. 8 7650-2203-1 869.81-
12/01/2017 CDPT 12/07/2017 730 P.E.R.S. 8 7650-2203-1 14.00-
12/01/2017 CDPT 12/07/2017 730 P.E.R.S. 8 7650-2203-1 332.60-
12/01/2017 CDPT 12/07/2017 730 P.E.R.S. 8 7650-2203-1 981.61-
12/01/2017 CDPT 12/07/2017 730 P.E.R.S. 8 7650-2203-1 1,533.40-
12/01/2017 CDPT 12/07/2017 200104 CA STATE DISBURSEME 37 7650-2203-0 69.23-
12/01/2017 CDPT 12/07/2017 200105 NATIONWIDE RETIREME 5 7650-2203-0 835.00-
12/01/2017 CDPT 12/07/2017 200106 NEVADA STATE TREASU 44 7650-2203-0 2.00-
12/01/2017 CDPT 12/07/2017 200107 STATE COLLECTION & DI 43 7650-2203-0 406.15-
12/01/2017 CDPT 12/07/2017 200108 VALIC 4 7650-2203-0 1,578.08-

12/01/2017 CDPT 12/07/2017 200109 VANTAGEPOINT TRANS. 3 7650-2203-0 62.00-

Grand Totals: 33 66,765.98-




AGENDA ITEM NO. 9A

Reviewed by: Df/mterim City Administrator X _Motion only
City Attorney Public Hearing

Resolution
Ordinance
Information

Submitted by: Dan Newton, Interim City Administrator

Action Date: December 20, 2017

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM
SUBJECT: Bank of America Parking Lot

PRESENTED BY:

SUMMARY:

FISCAL IMPACT:

ACTION
REQUESTED:

ATTACHMENTS:

Dan Newton, Interim City Administrator

The Bank of America (B of A) parking lot may soon be closed by the owner.
The parking lot is used by many patrons of Uptown Susanville businesses
and its closure would reduce available parking. A local businessman has
been in contact with the property owner and determined that the property
owner is receptive to leasing the parking lot to the City. The Historic Uptown
Susanville Association (HUSA) has requested that the City enter into a lease
with the owner of the B of A parking lot. HUSA has offered to contribute $200
a month toward a monthly lease and will also pay for snow removal. Impact
Construction has offered to remove snow from the parking lot at a
significantly reduced rate.

Staff has contacted the building owner and discussions pertaining to the

details of a lease agreement are underway. Additional information will be
provided at the meeting.

To be determined — Tentatively $400 per month.

Motion to authorize Interim City Administrator to develop lease agreement
with property owner to lease the B of A parking lot for public use.

Letter from HUSA President



December 14, 2017

RE: Parking in Historic Uptown Susanville

To City Council Members;

During the Historic Uptown Susanville Association December 12, 2017 Board meeting the closure of
the BOA parking lot was discussed. The HUSA board made 2 motions in hopes of creating a joint move to
keep the parking lot open for its Uptown business population:

e HUSA will contribute $200.00 per month towards a lease secured by the City of Susanville for
the leasing of the BOA parking lot
e HUSA will pay for snow removal, $150.00 per occurrence, completed by Impact Construction

Thank you for your consideration in this matter. Please feel free to contact the HUSA President with any
questions 530-249-1061

Sincerely,

Melanie Westbrook

HUSA President
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AGENDA ITEM NO. _9B

Reviewed by: E};glnterim City Administrator Motion only
City Attorney Public Hearing
__X_Resolution
Ordinance
Information
Submitted by: Deborah Savage, Finance Manager
Action Date: December 20, 2017

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 17-5462 accepting the City of Susanville’s Audited Financial
Statements for the Fiscal Year ending June 30, 2017 and the Independent Accountants’ Report on
the Appropriations Limit Schedule for Fiscal Year ending June 30, 2018.

PRESENTED BY: Deborah Savage, Finance Manager

SUMMARY: The firm of Badawi & Associates, CPAs has completed the audit of the City’s
Financial Statements for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017. The audit included the financial
statements of the governmental entities, business-type activities, each major fund, and the
aggregate remaining fund information of the City, which collectively comprises the City’s basic
financial statements. The City also receives an audit on the annual appropriations limit calculation
that is adopted along with the budget for the following fiscal year. The audit was completed on the
appropriations limit calculations for the fiscal year ending 2018.

| am very pleased to report that we have received an unmodified opinion on these financial
statements. The City of Susanville has continually received this unmodified or “clean” opinion since
2004. Ahmed Badawi, President of Badawi & Associates will present the audit report to the City
Council.

FISCAL IMPACT: None at this time,

ACTION REQUESTED: Motion to approve Resolution No. 17-5462 accepting the City of
Susanville’s Audited Financial Statements for the Fiscal Year ending
June 30, 2017.

ATTACHMENTS: Resolution No. 17-5462
City of Susanville Comprehensive Annual Financial Statements

(CAFR)



RESOLUTION NO. 17-5462
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SUSANVILLE
ACCEPTING THE AUDIT REPORT FOR THE CITY OF SUSANVILLE FOR
THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

WHEREAS, Badawi & Associates, Certified Public Accountants, having
been engaged by the City of Susanville to perform the annual audit for the Fiscal
Year Ended June 30, 2017: and

WHEREAS, Badawi & Associates, CPAs, have performed the audit and
submitted a Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the City of
Susanville for the Fiscal Year ending June 30, 2017 and the Independent
Accountants’ Report on the Appropriations Limit Schedule for Fiscal Year Ending
June 30, 2018, incorporated herein by reference.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of
Susanville that the CAFR for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017 and the

Accountant's Report on the Appropriations Limit Schedule for Fiscal Year Ending
June 30, 2018 is hereby accepted for the City of Susanville.

Dated: December 20, 2017

APPROVED:

Kathie Garnier, Mayor

ATTEST:

Gwenna MacDonald, City Clerk, by
Ruth Eliis, Administrative Staff Assistant

The foregoing Resolution was adopted at a regular meeting of the City
Council of the City of Susanville held on the 20th day of December, 2017 by the
following vote:

AYES:

NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAINING:

Gwenna MacDonald, City Clerk, by
Ruth Ellis, Administrative Staff Assistant

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Jessica Ryan, City Attorney



City of
Susanville

Susanville, California

Independent Accountants’” Report on
Agreed-Upon Procedures Applied to
Appropriations Limit Schedule

For the fiscal year ending June 30, 2018
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INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS’ REPORT ON LIMITED PROCEDURES
REVIEW OF APPROPRIATIONS LIMIT UNDER ARTICLE XIIIB
OF THE CALIFORNIA CONSTITUTION

To the Honorable Mayor and City Council
of the City of Susanville
Susanville, California

We have performed the procedures enumerated below to the accompanying Appropriations Limit
Schedule of the City of Susanville (City) for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2018. These procedures, which
were agreed to by the City and the League of California Cities (as presented in the publication entitled
Agreed-upon Procedures Applied to the A ppropriations Limitation Prescribed by Article XIII-B of the Californin
Constitution), were performed solely to assist you in meeting the requirements of Section 1.5 of Article XITI-
B of the California Constitution. The City management is responsible for the Appropriations Limit
Schedule. This agreed-upon procedures engagement was conducted in accordance with attestation
standards established by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The sufficiency of these
procedures is solely the responsibility of those parties specified in this report. Consequently, we make no
representation regarding the sufficiency of the procedures described below either for the purpose for which
this report has been requested or any other purpose.

The procedures performed and our findings are described below:

1. We obtained the completed worksheets used by the City to calculate its appropriations limit for the
fiscal year ending June 30, 2018, and determined that the limit and annual calculation factors were
adopted by resolution of City Council. We also determined that the population and inflation
options were selected by a recorded vote of City Council.

Findings: No exceptions were noted as a result of our procedures.

2. For the accompanying Appropriations Limit Schedule, we added the prior year’s limit to the total
adjustments, and agreed the resulting amount to the current year’s limit.

Findings: No exceptions were noted as a result of our procedures.

3. We agreed the current year information presented in the accompanying Appropriations Limit
Schedule to corresponding information in worksheets used by the City.

Findings: No exceptions were noted as a result of our procedures.

4. We agreed the prior year appropriations limit presented in the accompanying Appropriations Limit
Schedule to the prior year appropriations limit adopted by the City Council during the prior year.

Findings: No exceptions were noted as a result of our procedures.

Address: 12¢ Grand



To the Honorable Mayor and Members of City Council
of the City of Susanville

Susanville, California

Page 2

We were not engaged to and did not conduct an examination, the objective of which would be the
expression of an opinion on the accompanying Appropriation Limit Schedule. Accordingly, we do not
express such an opinion. Had we performed additional procedures, other matters might have come to our
attention that would have been reported to you. No procedures have been performed with respect to the
determination of the appropriation limit for the base year, as defined by Article XIII-B of the California
Constitution.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the City Council and management of the City
and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

ki Mm«&

Badawi and Associates
Certified Public Accountants
Oakland, California
December 12, 2017



City of Susanville
Appropriations Limit Schedule
For the fiscal year ending June 30, 2018

Amount Source
A. Appropriations limit for the year ended June 30, 2017 $ 9,711,796 Prior year resolution
Correction to adopted appropriation limit -
9,711,796
B. Calculation Factors:
1. Population increase % 1.0500  State Department of Finance
2. Inflation increase % 1.0369  State Department of Finance
3. Total adjustment factor % 1.0887 B1*B2
C. Annual Adjustment Increase 861,874 [(B3-1)A)]
D. Other Adjustments: -
Total other adjustments -
E. Total Adjustments 861,874 (C+D)
F. Appropriations limit for the year ending June 30, 2018 $ 10,573,670 (A+E)




City of Susanville
Notes to Appropriations Limit Schedule
For the fiscal year ending June 30, 2018

1. PURPOSE OF LIMITED PROCEDURES REVIEW

Under Article XIIIB of the California Constitution (the Gann Spending Limitation Initiative), California
governmental agencies are restricted as to the amount of annual appropriations from proceeds of taxes.
Effective for years beginning on or after July 1, 1990, under Section 1.5 of Article XIIIB, the annual
calculation of the appropriations limit is subject to a limited procedures review in connection with the
annual audit.

2. METHOD OF CALCULATION

Under Section 10.5 of Article XIIIB, for fiscal years beginning on or after July 1990, the appropriations limit
is required to be calculated based on the limit for the fiscal year 1986-1987, adjusted for the inflation and
population factors discussed in Notes 3 and 4 below.

3. INFLATION FACTORS

A California governmental agency may adjust its appropriations limit by either the annual percentage
change in the 4t quarter per capita personal income (which percentage is supplied by the State Department
of Finance), or the percentage change in the local assessment roll from the preceding year due to the
change of local nonresidential construction. The factor adopted by the City of Susanville for the fiscal year
2017-2018 represents the annual percentage change for per capita personal income.

4. POPULATION FACTORS

A California governmental agency may adjust its appropriations limit by either the annual percentage
change of the jurisdiction’s own population, or the annual percentage change in population in the County
where the jurisdiction is located. The factor adopted by the City of Susanville for fiscal year 2017-2018
represents the annual percentage change in population for the City.

5. OTHER ADJUSTMENTS
A California government agency may be required to adjust its appropriations limit when certain events

occur, such as the transfer of responsibility for municipal services, to, or from, another government agency
or private entity. There were no adjustments made for fiscal year ending June 30, 2018.
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66 North Lassen Street
Susanville, California 93130
Telephone (530) 252-5112
Fax (530) 257-4725

December 20, 2017

To the Honorable Mayor, Members of the
City Council and Citizens of the City of Susanville:

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the City of Susanville for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2017 is hereby submitted as mandated by State statutes.
These statutes require that the accounts and fiscal affairs of all municipal entities be
examined annually by an independent certified public accountant and a complete set of
financial statements presented in conformity with Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles (GAAP) be published within six months of the close of each fiscal year.

This report consists of the management’s representations concerning the finances of the
City of Susanville. Consequently, management assumes full responsibility for the
completeness and reliability of all the information presented in this report. To provide a
reasonable basis for making these representations, management has established a
comprehensive internal control framework that is designed to both protect the
government's assets from loss, theft or misuse and to compile sufficient reliable
information for the preparation of the City of Susanville’s financial statements in conformity
with GAAP. Because the cost of internal controls should not outweigh their benefits, the
City of Susanville’s comprehensive framework of internal controls has been designed to
provide reasonable rather than absolute assurance that the financial statements will be
free from material misstatement. As management, we assert that to the best of our
knowledge and belief, this financial report is complete and reliable in all material aspects.

The City of Susanville’s financial statements have been audited by Badawi & Associates, a
firm of licensed certified public accountants. The goal of the audit was to provide
reasonable assurance that the financial statements of the City of Susanville for the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2017 are free of material misstatement. The independent auditor
concluded, based upon the audit, that there was a reasonable basis for rendering an
unmodified or clean opinion and the City’s financial statements are fairly presented in
conformity with GAAP. The independent auditor's report is presented as the first
component of the financial section of this report.

GAAP requires that the management provide a narrative introduction, overview and
analysis to accompany the basic financial statements in the form of Management's
Discussion and Analysis (MD&A). This letter of transmittal is designed to complement the
MD&A and should be read in conjunction with it. The City's MD&A can be found
immediately following the report of the independent auditors.



Mayor and the Mayor Pro-Tempore. The Mayor and Mayor Pro-Tempore are appointed for
a two-year term. Council Members are elected to serve alternating four-year terms. The
City Council appoints the City Administrator and the City Attorney. All municipal elections
are at large.

The City of Susanville provides a wide range of municipal services, including police and
fire protection, water, natural gas and geothermal utilities, street maintenance, snow
removal, parks, planning, economic vitality, grant administration, contract administration
services for other government agencies, zoning, building and safety, and other general
government services. Accounting, payroll, revenue collection, accounts payable, treasury,
budget, financial reporting, business licensing and utility billing are the responsibility of the
Administrative Services Department.

The City’s accounting records are maintained on a modified accrual basis. Revenues are
recorded when measurable and available and expenditures are recorded when goods or
services are received and the liability incurred. The annual budget serves as the
foundation for the City of Susanville’s financial planning and control. The annual budget is
legally required to be adopted by July 1 of each year and is appropriated at the fund level.
City Council may appropriate, amend or transfer funds by an affirmative vote of three
Council Members at any regular or special Council meeting, with the transfer of some
restricted funds requiring a 4/5ths vote. The City Administrator is authorized to transfer
between departments of the General Fund and Department Heads have the authority to
transfer between most line items within their respective budgets.

Factors Affecting Financial Condition

The remoteness of our City insulated us from some of the large challenges that other cities
endured during the economic downturn, but it also slows our growth that aids in economic
recovery. Increased housing values over the last year have had a positive impact on
stabilizing the assessed values of properties within the City which declined a total of 11%
from 2010-2014 during the economic recession within the State. In 2016 assessed
property values increase by 2.8% and again we experienced another 3.4% increase in
2017. Property tax revenue increased in 2017 by 4.3% as compared to 2016 which saw an
increase of 2.1% from the previous year. As a percentage of total revenue, property taxes
accounted for approximately 16% of the general fund revenues in 2017 as compared to
16% in 2016, net of transfers. Sales tax revenue increased in 2017 as compared to 2016
by 9.6%. Sales tax comprised 34% of general revenues in 2017 as compared to 28% in

FY 2016-17 GF Revenue

Other
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@% BADAWI &ASSOCIATES

PUBLIC ACCOURNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council
of the City of Susanville
Susanville, California

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-
type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Susanville,
California (City) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2017, and the related notes to the financial
statements, which collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of
contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of
the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinions.

Address; 12 w, (A%4612 + Phone: 3147685250 « Fax 516



To the Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council
of the City of Susanville

Susanville, California

Page 3

The introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in
the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide
any assurance on them.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 12,
2017, on our consideration of the City’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other
matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on
internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the City’s internal control
over financial reporting and compliance.

P &M&a

Badawi and Associates
Certified Public Accountants
Oakland, California
December 12, 2017



City of Susanville

Management’s Discussion & Analysis
Year Ended June 30, 2017

This is the management’s discussion and analysis of the financial performance of the
City of Susanville for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017. Please read this in
conjunction with the transmittal letter, which can be found in the'introductory section
of this report, and with the City’s financial statements, which follow this discussion.

BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The basic financial statements, including the accompanying notes, constitute the core of
the City’s financial section. The fiscal year of the City starts on July 1 and ends on June
30. This report includes a blend of fund accounting and government-wide financial
reporting. The basic financial statements presented are:

= Government-wide

] Governmental funds
" Proprietary funds

" Fiduciary funds

A fund is a group of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources
that have been segregated for specific activities and objectives.

Government-Wide Financial Statements

Generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) for state and local governments
prescribe two basic government-wide financial statements:

u Government-wide Statement of Net Position
= Government-wide Statement of Activities



Governmental Fund Financial Statements
GAAP requires two basic governmental fund financial statements:

. Governmental Funds Balance Sheet .
. Governmental Funds Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund
Balances

The difference between the assets and liabilities of governmental funds is reported as
fund balance. Fund balance is divided into non-spendable, restricted, committed,
assigned and unassigned.

GAAP requires that each major fund be reported in a separate column. The General
Fund is always considered a major fund. All other non-major governmental funds are
aggregated and reported in a single column regardless of fund type. A fund is
considered major if it meets both of the following criteria:

1. 10% Criterion - An individual fund reports at least 10 percent of any of the
following:

] Total governmental fund assets

] Total governmental fund liabilities

. Total governmental fund revenues

= Total governmental fund expenditures
. Total governmental fund net position

2. 5% Criterion - An individual fund reports at least 5 percent of the aggregate
total for both governmental funds and enterprise funds of any one of the items
for which it met the 10 percent criterion.

A budgetary comparison is presented for the General Fund for which an annual budget
is legally adopted. The budgetary comparison includes the original appropriated
budget, the final amended budget and actual amounts. For the purposes listed above,
the major governmental funds for the City are the General Fund and the Streets and
Highways fund. For a listing of non-major governmental funds, please refer to the
supplementary information in the financial statements

Proprietary Fund Financial Statements
GAAP prescribes three basic financial statements for proprietary funds:
= Statement of Net Position

n Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position
. Statement of Cash Flows



Governmental activities are generally financed through taxes and intergovernmental
revenues. These activities are reported in the governmental funds (General Fund,
special revenue funds, capital projects funds, debt service funds) and internal service
funds. Business-type activities are generally funded through user fees and charges.
These activities are reported in the proprietary funds.

Tables A-1 and A-2 on the following pages, present a summary of the City’s Statements
of Net Position as of June 30, 2016 and 2017.

Table A-1
Government-wide Net Position as of June 30, 2016 and 2017
Governmental Activities

_ 2016 2017
Cash & investments $ 5,400,754 $ 5,696,176
Capital assets 4,354,812 4,289,794
Other assets 2,710,662 2,442,826
Total assets 12,466,228 12,428,796
Deferred Outflows of Resources 714,602 2,108,011
Current liabilities 1,617,267 1,494,023
Net pension liabilities 6,460,456 8,704,931
Other non-current liabilities 6,900,613 6,351,995
Total liabilities 14.978,336 16,550,949
Deferred Inflows of Resources 1,418,403 1,080,456
Net investment in capital assets 2,861,071 3,011,863
Restricted 3,228,998 3,091,763
Unrestricted (9,305,978) (9,198,224)
Total net position $(3,215,909) $(3,094,598)



Table B-1

Changes in Government-wide Net Position

For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2016 and 2017
Governmental Activities

Expenses (by function):

General government
Public safety

Streets

Protective inspections
Community services
Community development
Debt service

Total expenses

Program revenues lby maior source):

Charges for services
Operating grants and contributions
Capital grants and contributions

Total program revenues

General revenues and transfers:
Property taxes

Sales & use taxes

Transient lodging taxes
Franchise taxes

Business license taxes

Other taxes

Property tax in lieu of sales tax
Property tax in lieu of VLF
Investment earnings

Sale of Capital Assets
Transfers

Total general revenues and transfers

Change in net position
Net position, beginning of year

Net position, end of year

11

__ 2016
$ 528,514
3,742,579
1,898,033
205,391
1,300,553
343,208
327,131

8.345.409

579,188
1,030,102
987,566

2,596,856

877,382
1,449,788
455,099
36,767
241,985
42,996
349,848
1,389,739
39,206

0
111,036

4,993,846

(754,707)
(2.461,202)

$ (3,215,909)

__ 2017

$ 478,702
4,373,474
2,960,232

189,901
301,068
300,922
308,646

8,912,945

405,004
823,166
2,475,395

3.703,565

915,021
2,017,089
507,981
34,409
278,286
40,227

0
1,354,666
46,938

0
136,074

5,330,691

121,311
3.215909

$ (3,094,598)



Natural Gas Fund portion of the CalPERS Refunding Loan and the transfer out to
Streets Fund for repairing the streets after utility work, cash for capital
purchases and debt service decreased by $68,449 and the Natural Gas Fund
received its portion of a dividend from Risk Management in the amount of
$18,568. Cash received from LAIF interest allocations increased by $5,256.

e General Fund cash increased by $423,130, (from $2,502,304 to $2,925,434)
during fiscal year 2016-17. This increase is primarily due to the decrease in
borrowing of cash from the other funds of $15,867 from 2015-16 (in 2017 the
Airport Fund borrowed $53,147 and the Golf Course Fund borrowed $23,097),
a transfer in of $117,902 from Risk Management, an increase in accounts
payable of $128,799, an increase in deposits payable of $42,193 and setting
aside $119,998 in the various General Fund reserve accounts for Police, Fire
and Administrative Services.

e The Water Fund cash and investments increased by $385,029 (from $3,686,189
to $4,071,218), up from the previous year by $1,551,075. This is primarily due
to an increase in receipts from customers of $592,473 (that is attributed to the
rate increase that took effect December 2016. This rate increase set a non-
irrigation and irrigation season rate as well as an infrastructure surcharge
based on meter size.), an increase of $483,171 in payments to suppliers, a
decrease of ($92,310) in payments to employees (the water department had
one vacant position), a decrease in purchase of capital assets of ($1,329,975)
(no large water main replacement projects in 2017), an increase to receipts
from other funds and capital grants received of $46,282, an increase to
payments to other funds of $21,608 for the water fund portion of the CalPERS
Refunding Loan and the transfer out to Streets Fund for repairing the streets
after utility work, an increase of $8,373 to long term debt service payments and
an increase of $3,187 in LAIF interest allocation.

e The Gas Tax Fund cash increased by $118,237 (from $57,910 to $176,147).

This increase is primarily due to vacant positions within the department and
transfers in from other funds for street repairs.

ANALYSIS OF MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Following is a short description of the financial highlights for each of the City’s major
governmental funds for fiscal year 2016-17:

General Fund
The General Fund ended fiscal year 2016-17 with an increase in fund balance of

$572,304 (from $2,704,355 to $3,276,659) compared to the prior year. This increase in
fund balance can be primarily attributed to an increase in sales tax and property tax

13



ANALYSIS OF MAJOR PROPRIETARY FUNDS

Following is a short description of the financial highlights for each of the City’s major
proprietary funds for fiscal year 2016-17:

Water Enterprise Fund

At June 30, 2017, the Water Fund ending net position shows an increase of $493,272
(from $2,607,824 to $3,101,096). Overall the assets of the water fund increased by
$50,451. This is primarily due to an increase in cash of $385,029, a decrease in
inventory of ($2,562) (only a small number of meters are on hand for emergency
repairs if needed), increases in prepaids and interest receivable of $3,418, an increase
in accounts receivable of $55,911 (due to increase in usage from the previous year and
the infrastructure surcharge), and an decrease in capital assets of ($386,714) for
current depreciation.

The total liabilities decreased by ($384,238)(from $9,671,151 to $9,286,913) mostly
due to reductions in notes and bonds payable from debt service payments ($286,000)
an increase in net pension liability of $142,029, and a decrease in accounts payable of
$(232,863) due to water main replacement project in 2015-16.

Water Fund sales and charges for services increased by $537,960 (from, $2,187,569 to
$2,725,529) from the previous year. This is primarily due to the Water Rate Analysis
and Calculation report adopted by the City Council at the September 2016 regular
meeting. This report provided the true cost of operating and distributing potable water
to customers of the water system in addition to capital projects to repair and replace
aging infrastructure. New water rates were adopted by resolution rescinding the
previous tiered rate structure and replacing it with irrigation season rates (April-
September) and non-irrigation rates (October-March) along with an infrastructure
surcharge. This surcharge is based upon meter size. Customers with a standard 5/8 x
3/4 meter receive a $15.00 charge on their water bill each month. This surcharge is set
aside in a separate fund to be used for infrastructure replacement projects. The new
rates promote conservation and comply with the terms of Proposition 218. The new
rate structure took effect on January 1, 2017.

Total expenses, including interest expense and transfers out increased $72,275 (from
$2,229,044 to $2,301,319). This is primarily due to a net savings in operations due to
salaries and benefits of ($38,759) from vacant positions, an increase of $93,596 in
depreciation expense and overhead charges and an increase in transfers out of $21,608
for the Water Fund portion of the CalPERS debt service and contribution to the Streets
Fund for repairs in the roadway after utility work.

There were approximately 3,813 water customer accounts at June 30, 2017. This
increased by 2 new customer meter sets.

15



Susanville FY17/18 Gas Supply Portfolio
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Although the purchasing of the natural gas commodity is highlighted above, it only
represents 19% of the actual expenses. The largest expense for this enterprise fund is
debt service. The debt service payments on the revenue bonds will increase yearly
until 2031 when the payment reaches $1,807,075. Payments on the refunding revenue
bond will be defeased in 2045.
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Services (IGS), a consulting firm

specialized in natural gas. IGS evaluates and monitors the natural gas system
operations and its performance, and periodically advises the City on industry change.

General Fund Budget Highlights:

The fiscal year 2016-17 annual budget was prepared and approved on June 22, 2016
and became effective July 1, 2016 with a budgeted deficit spending of ($14,336). The
City is experiencing increases in sales tax revenue, business tax revenue and property
tax revenue, but continues to budget conservatively to allow for building up reserves.
The reserve fund at June 30, 2017 currently has $1,075,718 or 96% of the goal. As part
of the budget policies adopted by Resolution No. 16-5625, the City will strive to
maintain General Fund reserve equal to twenty percent (20%) of annual operating
revenues. Prudent fiscal management by the City Council and City Administration has
allowed the City to escape many of the tribulations faced by other cities throughout the

State of California.
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As of June 30, 2017, total General Fund revenues and other financing sources were
$5,978,827 or $222,541 more than budgeted. This variance is primarily due to an
increase of $268,950 in sales tax revenue, an increase $67,980 in transient occupancy
tax and an increase of$38,286 in business license tax revenue that was not budgeted for
and helped cover the $152,675 in unrealized budget projections.

Actual expenditures and other financing sources were $5,406,523 or ($384,012) less
than budgeted. This was due primarily as a result of a decrease in transfers out of
($83,301) for repayment of an advance to other funds, (the General Fund repaid the full
$249,000 advance back to the housing funds for the start-up costs of the closed RDA.),
decrease of ($108,144) for grant projects budgeted with no expenses in current year,
($37,419) savings in parks (primarily for personnel costs for the opening of the pool),
($40,000) in unused contingencies, ($21,900) savings in out of are fires, and ($93,000)
savings in all other combined departments.

CAPITAL ASSET AND LONG-TERM DEBT ACTIVITY

For more detailed information, please read this in conjunction with the City’s basic
financial statements and related notes, which follow this discussion.

Capital Assets Activity

Capital assets are reported at historical cost. The cost of capital assets includes
capitalized interest and ancillary charges necessary to place the asset into its intended
location and condition for use. Ancillary charges include costs that are directly
attributable to asset acquisition, such as freight and transportation charges, site
preparation costs, and professional fees. Donated capital assets are reported at their
estimated fair value at the time of acquisition plus ancillary charges if any.

Capital assets include land, improvements to land, buildings, building improvements,
vehicles, machinery, equipment, works of art and historical treasures, infrastructure, all
other tangible and intangible assets that are used in operations and that have initial
useful lives extending beyond a single reporting period.

Infrastructure assets are long-lived capital assets that normally are stationary in nature
and normally can be preserved for a significantly greater number of years than most
capital assets. Examples of infrastructure assets include roads, bridges, tunnels,
drainage systems, water systems, dams and lighting systems.

The City depreciates its capital assets according to their estimated useful lives and uses
a straight line depreciation method.

The City’s primary capital projects in 2016-17 was the Airport PAPI construction

project and various STIP rehabilitation projects throughout the City. The PAPI project
replaces the failing VASI system.
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City of Susanville
Statement of Net Position
June 30, 2017

Primary Government

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and investments $ 5,405,330 $ 8,328,293 $ 13,733,623
Accounts receivable 968,571 792,568 1,761,139
Interest receivable 12,042 18,827 30,869
Internal balances 76,244 (76,244) -
Prepaid expenses 26,078 4,979 31,057
Inventory 27,653 47,986 75,639
Total current assets 6,515,918 9,116,409 15,632,327
Noncurrent assets:
Loans receivable 1,332,238 - 1,332,238
Investments in bonds with fiscal agent 140,000 - 140,000
Restricted cash and investments with fiscal agents 150,846 2,447,781 2,598,627
Prepaid bond insurance - 83,364 83,364
Capital assets:
Non-depreciable 3,578,711 3,501,338 7,080,049
Depreciable, net 711,083 26,231,587 26,942,670
Total capital assets 4,289,794 29,732,925 34,022,719
Total noncurrent assets 5,912,878 32,264,070 28,176,948
Total assets 12,428,796 41,380,479 53,809,275
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred loss on refunding 51,787 666,924 718,711
Deferred employer pension contributions 747,873 100,564 848,437
Deferred outflows of resources - pension 1,308,351 179,083 1,487,434
Total deferred outflows of resources 2,108,011 946,571 3,054,582
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable 690,880 108,835 799,715
Accrued wages 77,902 - 77,902
Accrued interest 30,000 154,070 184,070
Deposits payable 65,189 225,027 290,216
Unearned revenue - 42,714 42,714
Early retirement incentive - due within one year 13,432 = 13,432
Sick leave conversion payable - due within one year 6,144 - 6,144
Compensated absences - due within one year 60,600 18,507 79,107
Notes payable - due within one year - 17,000 17,000
Bonds payable - due within one year 549,876 575,000 1,124,876
Total current liabilities 1,494,023 1,141,153 2,635,176
Noncurrent liabilities:
Sick leave conversion payable - due in more than one year 25,032 - 25,032
Compensated absences - due in more than one year 191,902 58,603 250,505
Net pension liability 8,704,931 1,128,415 9,833,346
Notes payable - due in more than one year - 793,000 793,000
Bonds payable - due in more than one year 6,135,061 30,999,132 37,134,193
Total noncurrent liabilities 15,056,926 32,979,150 48,036,076
Total liabilities 16,550,949 34,120,303 50,671,252
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred inflows of resources - pension 1,080,456 174,691 1,255,147
Total deferred inlows of resources 1,080,456 174,691 1,255,147
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 3,011,863 (1,984,283) 1,027,580
Restricted 3,091,763 2,447,781 5,539,544
Unrestricted (9,198,224) 7,568,558 (1,629,666)
Total net position $ (3,094,598) $ 8,032,056 $ 4,937,458

See accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements.
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Net (Expense) Revenue

and Changes in Net Position

Governmental Business-Type

Activities Activities Total
$ (278,222) % - $ (278,222)
(3,856,846) - (3,856,846)
(131,471) - (131,471)
(102,287) - (102,287)
(243,593) - (243,593)
(288,315) - (288,315)
(308,646) = (308,646)
(5,209,380) £ (5,209,380)
- (162,152) (162,152)
- 538,847 538,847
- 509,534 509,534
- (71,903) (71,903)
- (16,464) (16,464)
- 797,862 797,862
(5,209,380) 797,862 (4,411,518)
915,021 - 915,021
2,017,089 - 2,017,089
507,981 - 507,981
34,409 - 34,409
278,286 - 278,286
40,227 - 40,227
1,354,666 - 1,354,666
5,147,679 = 5,147,679
46,938 48,312 95,250
136,074 (136,074) -
5,330,691 (87,762) 5,242,929
121,311 710,100 831,411
(3,215,909) 7,321,956 4,106,047

$ (3,094,598) $ 8,032,056 $ 4,937,458




FUND
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Governmental Fund Financial Statements
Proprietary Fund Financial Statements

Fiduciary Funds Financial Statements
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GOVERNMENTAL FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

General Fund accounts for all financial resources except those to be accounted for in another fund. It is the
general operating fund of the City.

Gas Tax Fund accounts for gas tax monies received from the State of California, which are used to
construct and maintain streets, alleys, etc., and provide emergency snow-removal services within the City.

Other Governmental Funds is the aggregate of all the non-major governmental funds.
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City of Susanville

Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet
to the Government-Wide Statement of Net Position

June 30, 2017

Total Fund Balances - Total Governmental Funds
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net Position were different because:

Capital assets used in governmental aclivities were not current financial resources. Therefore, they
were not reported in the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet. Except for the internal service funds
renorted below. the cavital assets were adiusted as follows:

Non-depreciable

Depreciable, net

Total capital assets

Unavailable revenue recorded in the fund financial statements resulting from activities in which
revenues were eamed but funds were not available are reclassified as revenues in the Government-
Wide Financial Statements.

Interest payable on long-term debt did not require current financial resources. Therefore, interest
payable was not reported as a liability in Governmental Funds Balance Sheet.

Internal service funds were used by management to charge the costs of certain activities, such as
insurance, to individual funds. The assets and liabilities of the Internal service funds were included in
governmental activities in the Government-Wide Statement of Net Position.

Employer contributions for pension were recorded as expenditures in the governmental funds.
However, in the Government-Wide Financial Statement these contributions are deferred.

In the Government-Wide Financial Statements certain differences between actuarial estimates and
actual results for pension and other employer specific items are deferred and amortized over a period of
time, however in the governmental funds no transactions are recorded.

Deferred outflows of resources - pension
Deferred inflows of resources - pension
Deferred amounts related to the refunding of long-term debt were not current financial resources.

Therefore, they were not reported in the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet. This amount is to be
amortized over the life of the long-term debt.

Long-term liabilities were not due and payable in the current period. Therefore, they were not reported
in the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet.

Early retirement incentive - due within one year

Sick leave conversion payable - due within one year
Compensated absences - due within one year

Sick leave conversion payable - due in more than one year
Compensated absences - due in more than one year

Net pension liability

Bonds payable - due within one year

Bonds payable - due in more than one year

Total long-term liabilities

Net Position of Governmental Activities

See accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements.
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$ 6,701,400
$ 3,578,711
711,083
4,289,794
64,488
(30,000)
465,837
747,873
1,308,351
(1,080,456)
51,787
Government-Wide Internal
Statement of Net Service
Position Funds Total
$ (13432) § 13432
(6,144) 6,144 .
(60,600) 6,887 (53,713)
(25,032) 25,032 -
(191,902} 21,811 (170,091)
(8,704,931) (8,704,931)
(549,876) - (549,876)
(6,135,061) - (6,135,061)
$ (15,686,978) $ 73,306 (15,613,672)
$ (3,094,598)




City of Susanville

Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes

in Fund Balances to the Government-Wide Statement of Activities
For the year ended June 30, 2017

Net Change in Fund Balances - Total Governmental Funds

Amounts reported for govemmental activities in the Statement of Activities were different because:

Governmental funds reported capital outlay as expenditures. However, in the Government-Wide Statement of Activities, the
cost of those assets was allocated over their estimated useful lives as depreciation expense. This was the amount of capital
assets recorded in the current period.

Depreciation expense on capital assets was reported in the Government-Wide Statement of Activities, but they did not
require the use of current financial resources. Therefore, depreciation expense was not reported as expenditures in the
governmental funds.

Accrued compensated leave payable was an expenditure in govemmental funds, but the accrued payable increased
compensated leave liabilities in the Government-Wide Statement of Net Position.

Bond proceeds provided current financial resources to governmental funds, but issuing debt increased long-term liabilities in
the Government-Wide Statement of Net Position. Repayment of bond principal was an expenditure in governmental funds,
but the repayment reduced long-term liabilities in the Government-Wide Statement of Net Position.

Long-term debt repayments

Revenues that did not meet the revenue recognition criteria in the governmental funds but were recognized as revenue in the
Government-Wide Financial Statements.

Deferred amounts related to the refunding of long-term debt were not current financial resources. Therefore, they were not
reported in the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet. This amount is to be amortized over the life of the long-term debt.

Interest expense on long-term debt is reported on the accrual basis on the Government-Wide Statements, but expenditures
on long-term debt in the governmental funds statements are recorded when paid. The following amount represents the
change in accrued interest from the prior year.

Current year employer pension contributions are recorded as expenditures in the governmental funds, however these
amounts are reported as a deferred outflow of resources in the Government-Wide Statement of Net Position.

Pension expense is recorded as incurred in the Government-Wide Statement of Activities, however pension expense is not
recognized in the governmental funds.

Internal service funds were used by management to charge the costs of certain activities, such as insurance and fleet
management, to individual funds. The net revenue of the internal service funds was reported with governmental activities.

Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities

See accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements.
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$ 153,426

97,922

(162,940

(11,686)

513,770
43,140

(6,179

4,372
747,873

(1,255,813)

(3,574)

$ 121,311



PROPRIETARY FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Water Fund accounts for the activities of providing water to the residents of the City
Natural Gas Fund accounts for the activities of prividing natural gas to the residents of the City
Other Enterprise Funds is the aggregate of all the non-major enterprise funds.

Internal Service Funds are used to account for the financial transactions related to the City's public works
and engineering program, payroll, and risk management program. These services are provided to other
departments or agencies of the City on a cost reimbursement basis
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Governmental
Activities
Internal
Service Funds

5 622,302

1,307
3,427

627,036

627,036

114,356

25,032
21,811

46,843
161,199

465,837

$ 465,837
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$

$

Governmental
Activities
Internal

Service Funds

1,470,613
1,470,613

929,075
378,775

1,307,850

1,307,850

162,763

2,524

4,423

167,186

9,240
(180,000)

(170,760)

(3,574)

469,411
465,837
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Governmental
Activities
Internal

Service Funds

$ 1,470,260
(368,438)

(909,120)

192,702

9,240
(180,000)
(170,760)

1,899

2,162
2,162

26,003

596,299

622,302

$ 622,302

622,302

$ 162,763

(353)
7,537
2,800

56,292

(2,491)
(31,208)

(2,638)
29,939

192,702
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FIDUCIARY FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Section 125 Aflac/Wageworks accounts for agency activities for Section 125 Aflac activities.

LAFCO Fund accounts for agency activities for the Local Agency Formation Commission.

HUSA Busines Improvement Fund accounts for agency activities for Historic Uptown
Susanville Association.

Air Pollution District Fund accounts for agency activities for the Air Pollution District.

IRWMG Fund accounts for agency activities for the Integrated Regional Water Management
Group
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City of Susanville
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2017

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Continued
B. Basis of Accounting and Measurement Focus, Continued
Government-Wide Financial Statements, Continued
Certain types of transactions reported as program revenues for the City are reported in three categories:

o Charges for services
« Operating grants and contributions
« Capital grants and contributions

Certain eliminations have been made in regards to interfund activities, payables, and receivables. All
internal balances in the Statement of Net Position have been eliminated except those representing
balances between the governmental activities and the business-type activities, which are presented as
internal balances and eliminated in the total primary government column. In the Statement of
Activities, internal fund transactions have been eliminated; however, those transactions between
governmental and business-type activities have not been eliminated. The following interfund activities
have been eliminated:

o Due to/from other funds
o Transfersin/out

The City applies all applicable GASB pronouncements (including all NCGA Statements and
Interpretations currently in effect).

Governmental Fund Financial Statements

Governmental fund financial statements include a Balance Sheet and a Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances for all major governmental funds and non-major funds
aggregated. An accompanying schedule is presented to reconcile and explain the differences in net
position as presented in these statements to the net position presented in the government-wide financial
statements. The City has presented all major funds that meet specific qualifications.

All governmental funds are accounted for on a spending or “current financial resources” measurement
focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Accordingly, only current assets and current
liabilities are included on the balance sheets. The Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in
Fund Balances present increases (revenues and other financing sources) and decreases (expenditures
and other financing uses) in net current assets. Under the modified accrual basis of accounting,
revenues are recognized in the accounting period in which they become both measurable and available
to finance expenditures of the current period.
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City of Susanville
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2017

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Continued
B. Basis of Accounting and Measurement Focus, Continued
Governmental Fund Financial Statements, Continued

Skyline Bicycle Lane Special Revenue Fund account for fees collected from new developments within
the Skyline area to be used for the installation and maintenance of traffic signals, parks and
parkways.

State of Californin Prop 30 ABI109 Special Revenue Fund accounts for expenditures funded by
Proposition 30 AB109 revenues.

Traffic Signals Fund account for fees collected from new developments with the Skyline area to be
used for the installation and maintenance of traffic signals.

City Hall Debt Service Fund accounts for debt service payments on bond issued to remodel the City
Hall.

Mark Roos 92B Debt Service Fund accounts for assessments collected from homebuyers within
Miller/Fletcher Housing Development that are used to repay the bond that was issued in 1992 to
install the infrastructure within this development.

Side Fund Debt Service Fund accounts for debt service payments on the 2013 CalPERS Refunding Loan
that was used to refund the City’s CalPERS Side Fund obligations.

Community Swimming Pool Debt Service Fund accounts for debt service payments on the Community
Swimming Pool Loan that was used to finance a portion of the costs of the construction of a
community swimming pool and related costs and improvements there to by the Honey Lake Valley
Recreational Authority.

City Hall Parking Lot Project Fund accounts for amounts set aside for the City’s City Hall Parking Lot
Project.

Governmental Fund Financial Statements, Continued

Revenues are recorded when received in cash, except that revenues subject to accrual (generally those
received 60 days after year-end) are recognized when due. The primary revenue sources that have been
treated as susceptible to accrual by the City are property taxes, taxpayer-assessed tax revenues (sales
taxes, transient occupancy taxes, franchise taxes, etc.)), grant revenues and earnings on investments.
Expenditures are recorded in the accounting period in which the related fund liability is incurred.

The Reconciliation of the Fund Financial Statements to the Government-Wide Financial Statements is
provided
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City of Susanville
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2017

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Continued
B. Basis of Accounting and Measurement Focus, Continued
Fiduciary Fund Financial Statements

Fiduciary fund financial statements consist of a Statement of Fiduciary Net Position and a Statement of
Changes in Fiduciary Net Position. The City’s fiduciary funds are agency funds used to account for
assets held by the City as an agent for individuals, private organizations, and other governmental units.
The City maintains four agency funds - HUSA Business Improvement, Section 125 Aflac/Wageworks,
LAFCO, and Air Pollution District.

GASB Statement No. 34 defines major funds and requires that the City’s major governmental funds and
major proprietary funds are identified and presented separately in the fund financial statements. All
other funds, called nonmajor funds, are combined and reported in a single column, regardless of their
fund-type.

C. Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Investments

The City pools cash resources from all funds in order to facilitate the management of cash. The balance
in the pooled cash account is available to meet current operating requirements. Cash in excess of current
requirements is invested in various interest-bearing accounts and other investments for varying terms.

In accordance with GASB Statement No. 40, Deposit and Investment Disclosures (Amendment of GASB No.
3), certain disclosure requirements for Deposits and Investment Risks were made in the following areas:
* Interest Rate Risk
* Credit Risk
o Overall
o Custodial Credit Risk
o Concentrations of Credit Risk

In addition, other disclosures are specified including use of certain methods to present deposits and
investments, highly sensitive investments, credit quality at year-end, and other disclosures.

In accordance with GASB Statement No. 31, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Certain Investments and
for External Investment Pools, highly liquid money market investments with maturities of one year or less
at time of purchase are stated at amortized cost. All other investments are stated at fair value. The City
categorizes the fair value measurements of its investments based on the hierarchy established by
generally accepted accounting principles. The fair value hierarchy, which has three levels, is based on the
valuation inputs used to measure an asset’s fair value: Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in active markets
for identical assets; Level 2 inputs are significant other observable inputs; Level 3 inputs are significant
unobservable inputs. The City does not have any investments that are measured using Level 3 inputs.
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City of Susanville
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2017

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Continued
E. Property Taxes

California Constitution Article XIII A, limits the combined property tax rate to one percent of a
property’s assessed valuation. Additional taxes may be imposed with voter approval. Assessed value is
calculated at one hundred percent of a property’s fair value, as defined by Article XIII A, and may be
increased no more than two percent per year unless a change in ownership occurs.

The state legislature has determined the method of distributing the one percent tax levy among the
various taxing jurisdictions. Property tax revenues are recognized in the fiscal year for which taxes have
been levied and collected within sixty days of fiscal year end. Property taxes are billed and collected as

follows:
Secured Unsecured
Valuation/Lien Date(s) January 1 January 1
Levy Date(s) July 1 July 1
Due Date(s) November 1 (50%) August 1
February 1 (50%)
Delinquency Date(s) December 10 (Nov.) August 31
April 10 (Feb.)

G. Capital Assets

All capital assets are valued at historical cost or estimated historical cost if actual historical costs are not
available. Contributed capital assets are valued acquisition value on the date contributed. The City’s
policy is to capitalize all assets with costs exceeding $5,000 and with useful lives exceeding two years.

As required under GASB Statement No. 34, phase IIl governments were required to report the cost and
accumulated depreciation of infrastructure as of June 30, 2008. Phase III governments also had the option
of reporting all infrastructure assets acquired prior to July 1, 2004, but were required to report all
infrastructure assets acquired on July 1, 2004 and thereafter. The City has elected not to report
infrastructure acquired prior to July 1, 2004 and has not had any infrastructure acquisitions or
contributions/ donations since that time.

The purpose of depreciation is to spread the cost of capital assets equitably among all users over the life
of these assets. The amount charged to depreciation expense each year represents that yeat’s pro rata
share of the cost of capital assets. GASB Statement No. 34 requires that all capital assets with limited
useful lives be depreciated over their estimated useful lives. Depreciation is provided using the straight
line method which means the cost of the asset is divided by its expected useful life in years and the result
is charged to expense each year until the asset is fully depreciated. The City has assigned the useful lives
listed below to capital assets.

Buildings 20-40 Years
Improvements 10-45 Years
Equipment 2-15 Years
Parks 20 Years
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City of Susanville
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2017

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Continued
L. New Pronouncements

In 2017, the City adopted new accounting standards in order to conform to the following Governmental
Accounting Standards Board Statements:

» GASB Statement No. 74, Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefit Plans Other Than
Pension Plans- The objective of this Statement is to improve the usefulness of information
about postemployment benefits other than pensions (other postemployment benefits or
OPEB) included in the general purpose external financial reports of state and local
governmental OPEB plans for making decisions and assessing accountability. This Statement
results from a comprehensive review of the effectiveness of existing standards of accounting
and financial reporting for all postemployment benefits (pensions and OPEB) with regard to
providing decision-useful information, supporting assessments of accountability and
interperiod equity, and creating additional transparency. The requirements of this statement
were not applicable to the City.

» GASB Statement No. 77, Tax Abatement Disclosure- This Statement addresses the financial
statements prepared by state and local governments in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles provide citizens and taxpayers, legislative and oversight bodies,
municipal bond analysts, and others with information they need to evaluate the financial
health of governments, make decisions, and assess accountability. This information is
intended, among other things, to assist these users of financial statements in assessing (1)
whether a government's current-year revenues were sufficient to pay for current-year
services (known as interperiod equity), (2) whether a government complied with finance-
related legal and contractual obligations, (3) where a government’s financial resources come
from and how it uses them, and (4) a government’s financial position and economic
condition and how they have changed over time. There was no impact on net position as a
result of implementation of this statement.

» GASB Statement No. 78, Pension Provided through Certain Multiple-Employer Defined Benefit
Pension Plans— The objective of this Statement is to address a practice issue regarding the
scope and applicability of Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions.
This issue is associated with pensions provided through certain multiple-employer defined
benefit pension plans and to state or local governmental employers whose employees are
provided with such pensions. The requirements of this statement were not applicable to the

City.
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City of Susanville
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2017

2. CASH AND INVESTMENTS, CONTINUED

Cash and investment as of June 30, 2017 consist of the following:

Cash on hand $ 1,050
Deposits with financial institution 237,499
Local Agency Investment funds 14,192,179

Total City treasury 14,430,728
Restricted cash and investments 2,598,627
Investments in bonds with fiscal agent 140,000

Total cash and investments $ 17,169,355

A. Deposits

The carrying amount of the City’s cash deposit was a positive amount of $237,499 at June 30, 2017. Bank
balances before reconciling items were $375,202 at June 30, 2017. The City has waived the collateral
requirements for cash deposits, which are fully insured up to $250,000 by the Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation. The remaining amount was collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial
institutions in the City’s name.

The California Government Code (Code) requires California banks and savings and loan associations to
secure the City’s cash deposits by pledging securities as collateral. The Code states that collateral
pledged in this manner shall have the effect of perfecting a security interest in such collateral superior to
those of a general creditor. Thus, collateral for cash deposits is considered to be held in the City's name.

The market value of pledged securities must equal at least 110% of the City’s cash deposits. California
law also allows institutions to secure City deposits by pledging first trust deed mortgage notes having a
value of 150% of the City’s total cash deposits.

The City follows the practice of pooling cash and investments of all funds, except for funds required to
be held by fiscal agents under the provisions of bond indentures. Interest income earned on pooled cash
and investments is allocated to the various funds based on the period-end cash and investment balances.
Interest income from cash and investments with fiscal agents is credited directly to the related fund.
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City of Susanville
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2017

2. CASH AND INVESTMENTS, CONTINUED

B. Investments Authorized by the California Government Code and the City’s Investment Policy,
Continued

The City’s portfolio value fluctuates in an inverse relationship to any change in interest rate.
Accordingly, if interest rates rise, the portfolio value will decline. If interest rates fall, the portfolio value
will rise. The portfolio for year-end reporting purposes is treated as if it were all sold. Therefore, fund
balance must reflect the portfolio’s change in value. These portfolio value changes are unrealized unless
sold. Generally the City’s practice is to buy and hold investments until maturity dates. Consequently,
the City’s investments are carried at fair value.

The City is a voluntary participant in the Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) that is regulated by
California Government Code Section 16429 under the oversight of the Treasurer of the State of
California. The City’s investments with LAIF at June 30, 2017, include a portion of the pool funds
invested in Structured Notes and Asset-Backed Securities. These investments include the following:

Structured Notes - are debt securities (other than asset-backed securities) whose cash flow
characteristics (coupon rate, redemption amount, or stated maturity) depend upon one or more
indices and / or have embedded forwards or options.

Asset-Backed Securities - the bulk of which are mortgage-backed securities, entitle their purchasers to
receive a share of the cash flows from a pool of assets such as principal and interest repayments from
a pool of mortgages (such as Collateralized Mortgage Obligations) or credit card receivables.

As of June 30, 2017, the City had $14,192,179 invested in LAIF, which had invested 2.89% of the pool
investment funds in Structured Notes and Asset-Backed Securities as compared to 2.81% in the previous
year. The LAIF fair value factor of 0.998940671 was used to calculate the fair value of the investments in
LAIF.

C. Investments Authorized by Debt Agreements

Investment of debt proceeds held by bond trustee is governed by provisions of the debt agreements
rather than the general provisions of the California Government Code or the City’s investment policy.
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City of Susanville
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2017

2. CASH AND INVESTMENTS, Continued
G. Custodial Credit Risk

The custodial credit risk for an investment is the risk that in the event of the failure of the counterparty,
the City will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral securities that are in
possession of an outside party. None of the City’s investments were subject to custodial credit risk.

H. Investment Valuation

Investments (except money market accounts that are included as part of restricted cash and investments)
are measured at fair value on a recurring basis. Recurring fair value measurements, are those that
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statements require or permit in the statement of net
position at the end of each reporting period. Fair value measurements are categorized based on the
valuation inputs used to measure an asset’s fair value: Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in active markets
for identical assets; Level 2 inputs are significant other observable inputs; Level 3 inputs are significant
unobservable inputs. Investments’ fair value measurements at June 30, 2017 are described below:

Fair Value Measurement Using

Investment Type Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Investment in bonds with fiscal agent $ 140,000 § - % 140,000 $
Total 140,000 $ - $ 140,000 $

Investments not subject to levelling:

Local Agency Investment Fund 14,192,179
Total $ 14,332,179

Investments in municipal bonds categorized as Level 2 are valued based on matrix pricing which use
observable market inputs such as yield curves and market indices that are derived principally from or
corroborated by observable market data by correlation to other means.
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City of Susanville
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2017

3. CAPITAL ASSETS, Continued
Capital asset activity for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017, was as follows:

Balance Balance
July 1, 2016 Additions Deletions June 30, 2017

Business-type Activities

Water
Nondepreciable capital assets:
Land $ 963,184 $ -8 - §$ 963,184
Total nondepreciable
capital assets 963,184 - - 963,184

Depreciable capital assets:

Infrastructure 4,112,864 - - 4,112,864
Buildings 315,266 - - 315,266
Machinery and equipment 3,883,888 - - 3,883,888
Other improvements 6,393,749 12,443 - 6,406,192
Total depreciable capital assets 14,705,767 12,443 - 14,718,210
Less accumulated depreciation (8,307,931) (399,157) - (8,707,088)
Net depreciable capital assets 6,397,836 (386,714) - 6,011,122
Net capital assets $ 7,361,020 $ (386,714) $ - % 6,974,306
Balance Balance

July 1, 2015 Additions Deletions June 30, 2016

Business-type Activities

Natural Gas

Depreciable capital assets:

Infrastructure $ 22647138 $ 10470 $ - $ 22,657,608

Machinery and equipment 373,972 10,393 - 384,365
Total depreciable capital assets 23,021,110 20,863 - 23,041,973
Less accumulated depreciation (4,777,301) (404,296) - (6,181,597)
Net depreciable capital assets 18,243,809 (383,433) - 17,860,376

Net capital assets $ 18243809 $ (383433) 5 - $ 17,860,376
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3. CAPITAL ASSETS, Continued

Capital asset activity for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017, was as follows:

Balance Balance
July 1, 2016 Additions Deletions  June 30, 2017
Geothermal
Nondepreciable capital assets:
Land $ 249124 § - $ - $ 249,124
Total nondepreciable
capital assets 249,124 - - 249,124

Depreciable capital assets:

Buildings 24,852 - - 24,852
Other Improvements - 42,754 - 42,754
Machinery and equipment 228,666 - = 228,666
Total depreciable capital assets 253,518 42,754 - 296,272
Less accumulated depreciation (251,651) (1,071) - (252,722)
Net depreciable capital assets 1,867 41,683 - 43,550
Net capital assets $ 250,991 $ 41,683 $ -5 292,674

Depreciation Allocations

Depreciation expense was charged to functions and programs based on their usage of the related assets. The
amounts allocated to each function or program was as follows:

Governmental Activities:

General government $ 13,958
Public safety 88,868
Streets 30,511
Protective inspections 4,808
Community services 24,795

Total Depreciation Expense-Governmental Activities $ 162,940

Business-type Activities:

Water $ 399157
Natural Gas 404,296
Airport 164,205
Geothermal 1,071
Golf Course 23,484

Total Depreciation Expense-Business-type Activities ~ $ 992,213
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5. LOANS RECEIVABLE

The following schedule summarizes notes and loans receivables as of June 30, 2017:

General Fund
EDBG Business Assistance Program $ 57,422
Total General Fund 57,422

Non-Major Governmental Funds

State Revolving Fund Loan Program 949,327
HOME Revolving Fund Loan Program 325,489
Total Non-Major Governmental Funds 1,274,816
Total loans receivable $ 1,332,238

EDBG Business Assistance Program - The Economic Development Block Grant (EDBG) business
assistance loan program provides loans for small business loans. The outstanding balances of these loans
were $57,422 as of June 30, 2017.

State Revolving Loan Program - The State Revolving Loan Program provides loans to eligible low
income qualifying residents. Loans include first time homebuyer loans and loans for housing
rehabilitation. Loan repayments are restricted to be used for the program. Loans are secured by a lien
against the borrower’s property and the loans are deferred until the resident moves out of the property,
sell the property, or otherwise violates the provisions of the loan. The outstanding balances of these loans
were $949,327 as of June 30, 2017.

HOME Revolving Loan Program - The HOME Revolving Loan Program provides loans to eligible low
income qualifying residents. Loans include loans for housing rehabilitation. Funding for this program is
provided through the State of California HOME program. Loan repayments are restricted to be used for
the program. Loans are secured by a lien against the borrower’s property and the loans are deferred until
the resident moves out of the property, sell the property, or otherwise violates the provisions of the loan.
The outstanding balances of these loans were $325,489 as of June 30, 2017.
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6. LONG-TERM DEBT, Continued
C. 2012 Lease Financing (2012 City Hall Refunding Project)

2012 Lease Financing (2012 City Hall Refunding Project) - On June 1, 2012, the City entered into a lease
agreement with Compass Bank in the amount of $1,581,555, with interest and principal payable each
September 1 and March 1, beginning September 1, 2012 at an interest rate of 3.5%. The lease ends on
September 1, 2027. The City has leased five properties, including improvements on those properties to
Compass Bank in exchange for an advance rental payment of $1,581,555 from Compass Bank. Compass
Bank has leased back the five properties, including improvements on those properties, to the City, in
exchange for future monthly lease payments. The purpose of the lease is to (i) fund an escrow to defease
the 2002 City Hall Revenue Bonds, (ii) fund certain costs relating to the lease agreement.

$1,787,682 from the 2012 Lease Financing, including $166,775 from the Reserve Fund and $125,806 from
the Lease Payment Fund were placed in an irrevocable trust that will be used to pay off the 2002 City
Hall Revenue Bonds on September 1, 2012. The refunding resulted in an economic gain (difference
between the present value of the debt service payments on the old and new debts) of $451,743

Annual debt service requirements, to maturity, for the 2012 Lease Financing are as follows:

Fiscal Year Ended Revenue Bonds
June 30, Principal Interest Total
2018 $ 94,876 $ 40,819 $ 135,695
2019 100,916 37,465 138,381
2020 104,121 33,860 137,981
2021 104,577 30,233 134,810
2022 107,458 26,546 134,004
2023-2027 610,141 72,392 682,533
2028 67,629 1,184 68,813
Total $ 1,189,718 $ 242,499 $ 1,432,217

D. 2013 CalPERS Refunding Loan

On September 1, 2013, the City entered into a loan agreement with Umpqua Bank in the amount of
$4,907,000, with interest and principal payable each December 30 and June 30, beginning December 30,
2013 at an interest rate of 4.75%. Final payment is on June 30, 2028. The proceeds of the loan were used
to pay the delivery costs of $108,809, pay in the amount of $2,566,165 to satisfy the City’s Safety Plan
PERS Side Fund obligation, and pay in the amount of $2,232,026 to satisfy the City’s Miscellaneous Plan
PERS Side Fund obligation. The loan is secured by a pledge of all gross revenues, defined as all
revenues, moneys, accounts receivable, contractual rights to payment, and other rights to payment of
whatever kind legally available to pay loan repayments on the loan.
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6. LONG-TERM DEBT, Continued
F. Compensated Absences

City employees accumulate earned but unused vacation and compensatory time benefits which can be
converted to cash at termination of employment. Since no means exists to reasonably estimate the
amounts that might be liquidated with expendable currently available financial resources, if any, they
are reported as long-term debt on the Statement of Net Position. Expenditures are only reported in the
fund statements when payments are made. However, in the Statement of Activities the expenditure is
allocated to each function based on usage. The non-current portion of these vested benefits, payable in
accordance with various collective bargaining agreements, at June 30, 2017, total $191,902 for
governmental activities and $58,603 for business-type activities. Compensated absences for
governmental activities are generally liquidated by the fund where the accrued liability accrued, which
is usually the General Fund.

G. Early Retirement Incentive

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012, the City offered early retirement incentives to approximately
20 employees. The incentive included the opportunity to retire from the City and receive health
insurance through the City’s contract with the Laborer’s Health and Welfare Fund for the retiree plan,
in an amount up to $930/month, for a period of 60 months from the date of retirement. To be eligible,
employees had to be full-time, at least 45 years old, and have at least 7 years of employment with the
City of Susanville. As of June 30, 2017, 4 employees agreed to the early retirement incentives. The
balance of the accrued benefits, as of June 30, 2017 was $13,432.

H. Sick Leave Conversion Payable

The City provides post-retirement health care benefits to eligible employees who retire from the City.
Since June 30, 2012, all full time permanent City employees are eligible for this benefit, upon retirement.
The City utilizes an internal service fund (Retiree Benefits) to fund these future benefits.

The retirement benefit is limited to one-half of the employee’s unused sick leave at the date of
retirement, which may be applied only to fifty percent of health benefits for as long as the employee is
eligible to receive those benefits. All employees other than members of the Susanville Police Officer’s
Association are limited to $15,000 of conversion of unused sick leave upon retirement. This cost is
funded on a pay-as-you-go basis and is accrued as a long-term liability in the long-term debt disclosed
in Note 6 - Long-Term Debt once the retiree elects to retire and utilize one-half of their unused sick
leave. As of June 30, 2017, the balance was $31,176.
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6. LONG-TERM DEBT, Continued

J. Business Type Activities - Notes Payable

Notes payable at June 30, 2017, consisted of the following:

Water Fund to United States Department of Agriculture, bears
interest at 4.25%. Principal is payable annually on September 23
and interest is payable semi-annually on March and September 23.

The note matures on September 23, 2043.

Total Notes Payable

$ 810,000
$ 810,000

The scheduled annual minimum debt service requirements at June 30, 2017, are as follows:

Fiscal Year Ended Notes Payable
June 30, Principal Interest Total
2018 $ 17,000 34,064 $ 51,064
2019 18,000 33,320 51,320
2020 18,000 32,555 50,555
2021 19,000 31,769 50,769
2022 20,000 30,941 50,941
2023-2027 115,000 140,782 255,782
2028-2032 141,000 113,668 254,668
2033-2037 174,000 80,328 254,328
2038-2042 215,000 39,205 254,205
2043-2044 73,000 2,571 75,571
Total $ 810,000 539,203 $ 1,349,203

7. CITY EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT PLAN (DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN)

Plan Description

All qualified permanent and probationary employees are eligible to participate in the Public Agency Cost-
Sharing Multiple-Employer Defined Benefit Pension Plan (Plan) administered by the California Public
Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS). The Plan consists of individual rate plans (benefit tiers) within a
safety risk pool (police and fire) and a miscellaneous risk pool (all other). Plan assets may be used to pay
benefits for any employer rate plan of the safety and miscellaneous risk pools. Accordingly, rate plans
within the safety or miscellaneous pools are not separate plans under GASB Statement No. 68. Individual
employers may sponsor more than one rate plan in the miscellaneous or safety risk pools. The City
sponsors five rate plans (two miscellaneous and three safety). Benefit provisions under the Plan are
established by State statute and City resolution. CalPERS issues publicly available reports that include a full
description of the pension plan regarding benefit provisions, assumptions, and membership information

that can be found on the CalPERS website.
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7. CITY EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT PLAN (DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN), Continued

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expenses, and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions

As of June 30, 2017, the City reported a net pension liability for its proportionate share of the net pension
liability of the Plan of $9,833,346.

The City’s net pension liability for the Plan is measured as the proportionate share of the total net pension
liability of the Plan. The net pension liability of the Plan is measured as of June 30, 2016, and the total
pension liability for the Plan used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by actuarial
valuations as of June 30, 2015 rolled forward to June 30, 2016 using standard update procedures. The City’s
proportionate of the net pension liability was based on the City’s plan liability and asset-related information
where available, and proportional allocations of individual plan amounts as of the valuation date where not
available.

The City’s proportionate share of the net pension liability for each Plan as of June 30, 2015 and 2016 were as
follows:

Proportion - June 30, 2015 0.10616%
Proportion - June 30, 2016 0.11364%
Change - Increase (Decrease) 0.00748%

For the year ended June 30, 2017, the City recognized pension expense of $1,424,700. At June 30, 2017, the
City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the
following sources

Deferred Outflows of  Deferred Inflows of

Resources Resources
Pension contributions subsequent to
measurement date $ 848,437  $ -
Changes of assumptions - 253,945
Differences between expected and actual
experience - 21,754
Changes in employer's proportion 205,568 354,495
Differences between the employer's
contribution and the employer's proportionate
share of contributions - 624,953
Net differences between projected and actual
earnings on plan investments 1,281,867 -
Total $ 2335872  § 1,255,147
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7. CITY EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT PLAN (DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN), Continued

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-block
method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of
pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class.

In determining the long-term expected rate of return, CalPERS took into account both short-term and long-
term market return expectations as well as the expected pension fund cash flows. Using historical returns
of all the funds’ asset classes, expected compound returns were calculated over the short-term (first 10
years) and the long-term (11-60 years) using a building-block approach. Using the expected nominal
returns for both short-term and long-term, the present value of benefits was calculated for each fund.
The expected rate of return was set by calculating the single equivalent expected return that arrived at
the same present value of benefits for cash flows as the one calculated using both short-term and long-
term returns. The expected rate of return was then set equivalent to the single equivalent rate calculated
above and rounded down to the nearest one quarter of one percent.

The table below reflects the long-term expected real rate of return by asset class. The rate of return was
calculated using the capital market assumptions applied to determine the discount rate and asset
allocation. These rates of return are net of administrative expenses.

New

Strategic Real Return Real Return

Asset Class Allocation Years 1 - 10(a) Years 11+(b)
Global Equity 51.00% 5.25% 571%
Global Fixed Income 20.00% 0.99% 2.43%
Inflation Sensitive 6.00% 0.45% 3.36%
Private Equity 10.00% 6.83% 6.95%
Real Estate 10.00% 4.50% 513%
Infrastructure and Forestland 2.00% 4.50% 5.09%
Liquidity 1.00% -0.55% -1.05%

Total 100%

(a) An expected inflation of 2.5% used for this period.
(b) An expected inflation of 3.0% used for this period.
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9. INSURANCE, Continued

Condensed financial information of the Small Cities Organized Risk Effort (SCORE) for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2017, is as follows:

Total Assets $ 12,866,727
Total Liabilities $ 5,412,717
Fund Equity 7,454,010
Total Liabilities and Equity $ 12,866,727
Total Revenues $ 3,602,196
Total Expenditures (3,918,477)
Net Increase/ (Decrease) $ (316,281)

Copies of the financial statements are available from SCORE, located in Sacramento, California.

The City is also a member of a Joint Powers Agreement with Employment Risk Management Authority
(ERMA).

Condensed financial information of ERMA for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017, is as follows:

Total Assets $ 25,764,070
Total Liabilities $ 11,903,844
Fund Equity 13,860,226
Total Liabilities and Equity $ 25,764,070
Total Revenues $ 6,545,195
Total Expenditures 7,336,984
Net Increase $  (791,789)
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12. NET POSITION AND FUND BALANCES, Continued

A. Net Position, Continued

B.

Restricted describes the portion of net position which is restricted as to use by the terms and conditions
of agreements with outside parties, governmental regulations, laws, or other restrictions which the City
cannot unilaterally alter. These principally include developer fees received for use on capital projects,
debt service requirements, and redevelopment funds restricted to low and moderate income purposes.

Unrestricted describes the portion of net position which is not restricted as to use.

When both restricted and unrestricted net position is available, restricted resources are depleted first
before the unrestricted resources are used.

Restricted net position as of June 30, 2017:

Public Safety $ 227,633
Parks 163,075
Housing and
Economic Development 1,302,082
HOME Program 725,160
Traffic Safety 59,125
Traffic Signals 97,329
Streets and Roads 208,138
Debt Service 290,846
Capital Projects 18,375
Total Restricted $ 3,091,763

Fund Balances

Fund balance is divided into five classifications based primarily on the extent to which the City is bound
to observe constraints imposed upon the use of the resources in the governmental funds. The
classifications are as follows:

Nonspendable - The nonspendable fund balance category includes amounts that cannot be spent
because they are not in spendable form, or legally or contractually required to be maintained intact. The
“not in spendable form” criterion includes items that are not expected to be converted to cash. It also
includes the long-term amount of interfund loans.
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12. NET POSITION AND FUND BALANCES, Continued
B. Fund Balances, Continued

The constraints placed on fund balance for the major governmental funds and all other governmental
funds at June 30, 2017 are as follows:

Nonmajor
Fund Balances General Fund Gas Tax Fund Governmental Funds Total
Nonspendable:
Prepaids $ 20,883 $ - % - % 20,883
Inventory 12,039 - - 12,039
Loans receivable 57,422 - - 57,422
Total Nonspendable 90,344 - - 90,344
Restricted for:
Public Safety - - 227,633 227,633
Parks - - 163,075 163,075
Housing Economic Development - - 1,302,082 1,302,082
HOME Program - - 725,160 725,160
Traffic Safety - - 59,125 59,125
Traffic Signals - - 97,329 97,329
Streets and Roads - 171,875 36,263 208,138
Debt Service - - 290,846 290,846
Capital Projects 18,375 - - 18,375
Total Restricted 18,375 171,875 2,901,513 3,091,763
Assigned for:
Economic Development 113,679 - = 113,679
Debt Service - - 337,505 337,505
Capital Projects - - 13,848 13,848
Total Assigned 113,679 - 351,353 465,032
Unassigned 3,054,262 - - 3,054,262
Total Fund Balances $ 3,276,660 $ 171,875 $ 3,252,866 $ 6,701,401

*Included in the Unassigned Fund Balance for the General Fund is $1,078,107 that is set-aside as a reserve,
by Council Resolution.

13. REVENUE LIMITATIONS IMPOSED BY CALIFORNIA PROPOSITION 218

Proposition 218, which was approved by the voters in November 1996, will regulate the City’s ability to
impose, increase, and extend taxes, assessments, and fees. Any new, increased, or extended taxes,
assessments, and fees subject to the provisions of Proposition 218, require voter approval before they can be
implemented. Additionally, Proposition 218 provides that these taxes, assessments, and fees are subject to
the voter initiative process and may be rescinded in the future years by the voters.
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16. JOINTLY GOVERNED AND RELATED ORGANIZATIONS

Honey Lake Valley Recreation Authority

The Honey Lake Recreation Authority (HLVRA) was created by a joint powers agreement between the
County of Lassen and the City of Susanville on November 18, 2013 under the provisions of California
Government Code 6500 et. Seq. HLVA is an entity separate from its member agencies created for the
purpose of owning and operating public recreation facilities, including a swimming pool. HLVRA has a
five-member board of directors comprised of two representatives from each member agency and on
member at large.

Lassen Regional Solid Waste Management Authority

In 1999, the Lassen Regional Solid Waste Management Authority (the “Authority”) was created under a
joint powers agreement between the County of Lassen and the City of Susanville. It was formed to fund,
plan, operate, administer, and maintain solid waste facilities, sites and services, including all mandated
costs for planning, waste diversion, and both closure and post-closure of sites, as well as public education,
waste transfer, material recovery, recycling, household hazardous waste programs, and other AB939
programs. The Authority has a board of directors, which consists of five persons, two from the County and
two from the City, and one public member at-large who is appointed by the City and County members. The
members have no share of the Authority’s debts, liabilities, and obligations.

Lassen Transit Service Agency

The Lassen Transit Service Agency (Agency) was created as a joint powers agreement (JPA) between the
County of Lassen and the City of Susanville on July 17, 2002 under the provisions of Article 1, Chapter 5,
Division 7, Title 1 of the California Government Code Section 6500. The Agency is charged with the
administration and operation of the Lassen Rural Bus (LRB) public transportation services within Lassen
County under the jurisdiction of the Lassen County. The Commission is comprised of three member of the
Lassen County Board of Supervisors and three members of the City of Susanville City Council, and
allocates and distributes the Transportation Development Act (TDA) funding for LRB service operations. In
addition to TDA funds, the Agency receives funding through several resources including the federal
government and the State of California.

Lassen County Aty Pollution Control District

The Lassen County Air Pollution Control District (District) is a local air district governing the Lassen
County region. The District Board is a six member board comprised of three members from the Lassen
County Board of Supervisors and three members from the City of Susanville City Council.
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1. BUDGETS AND BUDGETARY ACCOUNTING, Continued

B. Budgetary Comparison Schedules

The following are the budget comparison schedules for all major Governmental Funds.

Budgetary Comparison Schedule, General Fund

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
REVENUES:
Taxes and asssessments $ 4,723,980 $ 4,728,647 $ 5,104,539 $ 375,892
Licenses and permits 83,600 83,600 87,084 3,484
Fines and forfeitures 93,846 93,871 86,744 (7,127)
Use of money and property 35,670 35,870 48,810 12,940
Intergovernmental 254,847 445,792 331,835 (113,957)
Program income = - 2,910 2,910
Charges for services 138,415 211,490 151,018 (60,472)
Other revenues 24,024 10,150 16,178 6,028
Total revenues 5,354,382 5,609,420 5,829,118 219,698
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
General government: 555,979 576,171 459,732 116,439
Public Safety 3,676,260 3,916,722 3,807,757 108,965
Streets - 29,010 26,986 2,024
Protective inspections 252,599 215,143 191,767 23,376
Community services 190,279 336,884 284,846 52,038
Community development 171,387 163,327 166,490 (3,163)
Capital outlay 7,828 9,218 8,193 1,025
Total expenditures 4,854,332 5,246,475 4,945,771 300,704
REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURE 500,050 362,945 883,347 520,402
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Transfers in 29,674 146,866 146,868 2
Transfers out (544,060) (544,060) (460,752) 83,308
Proceeds from sale of capital assets - - 2,841 2,841
Total other financing sources (uses) (514,386) (397,194) (311,043) 86,151
Net change in fund balance $ (14,336) % (34,249) 572,304 $ 606,553
FUND BALANCE:
Beginning of year 2,704,355
End of year $ 3,276,659
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2. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN

A. Schedule of the City’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability - Last 10 Years*

Fiscal year: 2017 2016 2015
Measurement date: 6/30/2016 6/30/2015 6/30/2014
Proportion of the net pension liability 0.11364% 0.10616% 0.10938%
Proportionate share of the net pension liability $ 9,833,346  $ 7,287,061 $ 6,637,753
Covered payroll $ 3,342,599 % 3,237,445 $ 2,943,546
Proportionate Share of the net pension liability as

percentage of covered payroll 294.18% 225.09% 62.00%

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the
total pension liability 74.06% 78.40% 79.82%

Notes to Schedule:

*- Fiscal year 2015 was the 1st year of implementation.

B. Schedule of Contributions - Last 10 Years*

Fiscal year 2017 2016 2015

Contractually required contribution (actuarially

determined) $ 848,437 % 749220 % 601,837

Contribution in relation to the actuarially

determined contributions (848,437) (749,220) (601,837)
Contribution deficiency (excess) $ - % - 5 -

Covered payroll $ 3,167,033  $ 3,342,599 $ 3,237,445

Contributions as a percentage of covered payroll 26.79% 22.41% 18.59%

Note to Schedule
Valuation date:** 6/30/2014 6/30/2013 6/30/2012

* - Fiscal year 2015 was the 1 st year of implementation.
** Date of actuarial valuation used to determine the contractually required contribution.
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NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

Local Law Enforcement Block Grant Fund accounts for a State grant is used to fund a Police
Sergeant's position to supplement the number of personnnel assigned to provide law enforcement
services to the City.

Street, Police, & Fire Mitigation Funds account for fees collected from new developments within the
City used for the purchase and maintenance of vehicles, equipment, and various facilities

Park Land In-Lieu Fund accounts for fees collected from new developments within the City which
are used to purchase necessary equipment and land to maintain and expand the City's parks.

State Revolving Loan Fund accounts for program income received from Community Development
Block Grant loans given for Housing Rehabilitation, Facade Improvement, Business Assistance, and
First-Time Home Buyers loan that are then re-issued in the form of new loans.

HOME Revolving Loan Special Revenue Fund accounts for program income received from the
Facade Improvement, Business Assistance, and First-Time Home Buyers loan re-payments which are
re-issued in the form of new loans.

Traffic Safety Fund accounts for a portion of fines and forfeitures received by the City for any arrests
by a City Officer under VC 42200 that is used for the purchase and maintenance of equipment
associated with Traffic Law Enforcement.

Skyline Bicycle Lane Fund accounts for fees collected from new development within the Skyline area
to be used for the installation and maintenance of traffic signals, parks and parkways.

State of California Prop 30 AB109 Fund account for expenditures funded by Proposition 30 AB109
revenues.

Traffic Signals Fund account for fees collected from new developments within the Barry Creek and
Chestnut Street areas used to repay the City for installation of the culverts.
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Special Revenue Funds

HOME State of
Park Land State Revolving Revolving Skyline California

In-lieu Loan Loan Traffic Safety Bicycle Lane Prop 30 AB 109

Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund
$ 162,699 $ 351,077 $ 397,792 % 58,740  $ 7,559 23,668
- 1,054 1,036 250 - -
376 624 843 135 17 -
- 949,327 325,489 - - -
$ 163,075 § 1,302,082 $ 725160 $ 59,125 § 7576 % 23,668
$ - 8 - % - % - § - 3 =
163,075 1,302,082 725,160 59,125 7,576 23,668
163,075 1,302,082 725,160 59,125 7,576 23,668
$ 163,075 $ 1,302,082 $ 725160 $ 59,125 % 7576 % 23,668
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Debt Capital Project
Service Fund Fund Total
Community
Swimming Pool City Hall Non-Major
TDrebt Gervice Parking Lot Governmental
Tiund Project Fund Funds
$ 631 § 13,848 § 1,681,447
- - 150,846
- - 140,000
- 2,340
- 2,649
- B 768
- - 1,274,816
$ 631 $ 13,848 § 3,252,866
$ - % - 8 -
- - 2,901,513
631 13,848 351,353
631 13,848 3,252,866
$ 631 $ 13,848 $ 3,252,866




Special Revenue Funds

HOME State of
Park Land State Revolving Revolving Traffic Skyline California
In-lieu Loan Loan Safety Bicycle Lane Prop 30 AB 109
Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund
$ - 8 - - $ 7,705 = %
878 1,224 19,101 263 41 -
. E = - - 13,725
878 1,224 19,101 7,968 41 13,725
- 12,646 259 - - B
2,079 = - 25,285 - -
2,079 12,646 259 25,285 - -
(1,201) (11,422) 18,842 (17,317) 41 13,725
= = = - - (24,672)
" - . - - (24,672)
(1,201) (11,422) 18,842 (17,317) 41 (10,947)
164,276 1,313,504 706,318 76,442 7,535 34,615
$ 163075 _$ 1302082 _$ 725160 _§$ 59,125 7,576 23,668
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Debt Capital
Service Fund Project Fund Total
Community
Swimming City Hall Non-Major
Pool Debt Parking Lot Governmental

Service Fund Project Fund Funds

- $ 7,705

- 23,578

- 131,725

> 27.571

- 190,579

- 100,299

- 141,106

- 49,746

65,000 513,770

36,376 307,056

101,376 1,111,977

(101,376) (921,398)

66,048 536,676

- (24,672)

66,048 512,004

(35,328) (409,394)

35,959 13,848 3,662,260

631 13848 _§ 3,252,866
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City of Susanville

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual

Local Law Enforcement Block Grant Fund
For the year ended June 30, 2017

Variance with

Final Budget
Budget Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

REVENUES:
Use of money and property $ - 8 - $ 152§ 152
Intergovernmental revenue 100,000 100,000 118,000 18,000

Total revenues 100,000 100,000 118,152 18,152
EXPENDITURES:
Current:

Public safety: 100,000 100,300 100,299 1
Total expenditures 100,000 100,300 100,299 1
Net change in fund balance $ - $ (300) 17,853 % 18,153

FUND BALANCE:
Beginning of year 54,963
End of year $ 72,816
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City of Susanville

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual

Police Mitigation Fund
For the year ended June 30, 2017

REVENUES:

Use of money and property
Other revenues

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Capital outlay

Total expenditures
Net change in fund balance

FUND BALANCE:
Beginning of year

End of year

Variance with

Final Budget
Budget Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
- % - 8 62 $ 62
3,200 3,200 9,353 6,153
3,200 3,200 9,415 6,215
- 23,644 22,382 1,262
- 23,644 22,382 1,262
3,200 % (20,444) (12,9%67) $ 7477

24,056
5 11089
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City of Susanville

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual

Park Land In-lieu Fund
For the year ended June 30, 2017

REVENUES:

Use of money and property
Other revenues

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Capital outlay

Total expenditures
Net change in fund balance

FUND BALANCE:
Beginning of year

End of year

Variance with

Final Budget
Budget Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
$ - 878 % 878
500 500 - (500)
500 500 878 378
11,910 8,220 2,079 6,141
11,910 8,220 2,079 6,141
$ (11,410) (7,720) 1,201) $ 6,519
164,276
163,075
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City of Susanville

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual

HOME Revolving Loan Fund
For the year ended June 30, 2017

REVENUES:

Use of money and property
Program income

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES:

Current:
Community Development

Total expenditures
Net change in fund balance

FUND BALANCE:
Beginning of year

End of year

Variance with

Final Budget
Budget Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

155 % 18634 % 19101 % 467

155 18,634 19,101 467
10,000 10,000 259 9,741
10,000 10,000 259 9,741
(9845) $ 8,634 18,842  $ 10,208

706,318

$ 725,160
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City of Susanville

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual

Skyline Bicycle Lane Fund
For the year ended June 30, 2017

REVENUES:

Use of money and property
Other revenues

Total revenues
Net change in fund balance

FUND BALANCE:
Beginning of year

End of year

Variance with

Final Budget
Budget Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
- % - 41 % 41

100 100 = (100)
100 100 41 (59)
100 $ 100 41 8 59

7,535

7,576
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City of Susanville

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual

Traffic Signals Fund
For the year ended June 30, 2017

REVENUES:

Intergovernmental revenues

Charges for services

Total revenues
Net change in fund balance

FUND BALANCE:
Beginning of year

End of year

Variance with

Final Budget
Budget Amounts Actual
Original Amounts (Negative)

- E 612 612
500 500 - (500)
500 500 612 112
500 500 612 112

96,717

97,329
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City of Susanville

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
Mark Roos 92B Debt Service Fund

For the year ended June 30, 2017

Variance with

Final Budget
Budget Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
REVENUES:
Use of money and property $ - 5 - % 501 % 501
Total revenues - - 501 501
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Community development - - 128,201 (128,201)
Debt service:
Principal 130,000 130,000 130,000 -
Interest and fiscal charges 19,121 19,121 18,828 293
Total expenditures 149,121 149,121 277,029 (127,908)
Net change in fund balance $ (149,121) $ (149,121) (276,528) $ (127,407)
FUND BALANCE:
Beginning of year 592,779
End of year $ 316,251
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City of Susanville

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual

Community Swimming Pool Debt Service Fund
For the year ended June 30, 2017

Variance with

Final Budget
Budget Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
EXPENDITURES:
Debt service:
Principal $ 65000 $ 65,000 65000 § -
Interest and fiscal charges 37,010 37,010 36,376 634
Total expenditures 102,010 102,010 101,376 634
REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES (102,010) (102,010) (101,376) 634
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Transfers in 66,052 66,052 66,048 -
Total other financing sources (uses) 66,052 66,052 66,048 .
Net change in fund balance $ (35958) % (35,958) (35,328) $ 634
FUND BALANCE:
Beginning of year 35,959
631

End of year
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NON MAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS

Airport Fund accounts for the activities of the City's airport

Geothermal Fund accounts for the activities of prividing geothermal heat to the residents of the City

Golf Course Fund accounts for the City's golf course
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City of Susanville
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Position

Non-Major Enterprise Funds
For the year ended June 30, 2017

Total
Non-Major
Airport Golf Course Geothermal Enterprise
Fund Fund Fund Funds
OPERATING REVENUES:
Sales and charges for services $ 70222 % 242,509 $ 69,227 $ 381,958
Total operating revenues 70,222 242,509 69,227 381,958
OPERATING EXPENSES:
Direct;
Administration 57,385 258,689 34,555 350,629
Depreciation and amortization 164,204 23,483 1,070 188,757
Total direct operating expenses 221,589 282,172 35,625 539,386
Indirect:
Overhead allocation 56,568 32,040 50,066 138,674
Total indirect operating expenses 56,568 32,040 50,066 138,674
Total operating expenses 278,157 314,212 85,691 678,060
OPERATING INCOME (LOSS): (207,935) (71,703) (16,464) (296,102)
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES):
Interest income 4 4) 1,569 1,561
Interest expense and fiscal charges (241) (200) - (441)
Reimbursements 2,500 - - 2,500
Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) 2,255 (204) 1,569 3,620
INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE CONTRIBUTIONS
AND TRANSFERS (205,680) (71,907) (14,895) (292,482)
Capital contributions 43,524 - - 43,524
Change in net position (147,156) (67,732) (14,895) (229,783)
NET POSITION:
Beginning of year 2,283,374 2,428,874 572,623 5,284,871
End of year $ 2,136,218 % 2,361,142 % 557,728  $ 5,055,088
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INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

Public Works Administration Fund accounts for the City's public works administration activities

Risk Administration Fund accounts for the City's risk administration activities

Retirement Benefits Fund accounts for expenses related to other postemployment benefit costs.
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City of Susanville

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
All Internal Service Funds

For the year ended June 30, 2017

Public Works Risk Retirement
Administration Management Benefits
Fund Fund Fund Total

OPERATING REVENUES:
Charges for services $ 734,788 $ 735825  $ - % 1,470,613

Total operating revenues 734,788 735,825 - 1,470,613
OPERATING EXPENSES:
Administration 595,297 333,778 - 929,075
Insurance costs and claims 106,553 272,222 - 378,775

Total operating expenses 701,850 606,000 - 1,307,850
OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) 32,938 129,825 - 162,763
NONOPERATING REVENUES EXPENSES:
Gain on sale of capital assets 1,899 - - 1,899
Interest income 945 1,579 - 2,524

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) 2,844 1,579 - 4,423
INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE TRANSFERS 35,782 131,404 - 167,186
Transfers in 9,240 - - 9,240
Transfers out - (180,000) . (180,000)

Total transfers in (out) 9,240 (180,000} - (170,760)

Change in net position 45,022 (48,596) - (3,574)
NET POSITION:
Beginning of year 87,849 381,562 - 469,411
End of year $ 132871 $ 332,966 $ - $ 465,837
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FIDUCIARY FUNDS

Section 125 Aflag/Wageworks accounts for agency activities for Section 125 Aflac activities.
LAFCO Fund , accounts for agency activities for LAFCO.
HUSA Busines Improvement Fund accounts for agency activities for HUSA.

Air Pollution District Fund accounts for agency activities for the Air Pollution District.
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Total Agency Funds
ASSETS
Cash and investments
Accounts receivable
Interest receivable

Prepaid expenses

Total Assets

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Deposits payable
Other liabilities

Total Liabilities

Balance Balance

June 30, 2016 Additions Deletions June 30, 2017
561,778 695,622 (560,295) 697,105
21,688 21,932 (21,688) 21,932
720 1,194 (720) 1,194
840 899 (840) 899
585,026 719,647 (583,543) 721,130
13,945 8,028 (13,945) 8,028
569,276 711,719 (567,893) 713,102
1,805 - (1,805) -
585,026 719,747 (583,643) 721,130
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Exhibit A-1
Statistical Section

This part of the report is consisted of the City of Susanville's comprehensive annual financial
report which presents detailed information as a context for understanding in regarding to what

the information in the financial statements, note disclosures, and required supplemental information
says about the City's overall financial health.

Contents

Financial Trends
These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how the
City's financial performance and well-being have changed over time.

Revenue Capacity
These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the factors
affecting the City's ability to generate its property and sales taxes.

Debt Capacity
These schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordability
of the City's current levels of outstanding debt and the City's ability to issue
additional debt in the future.

Demographic and Economic Information
These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader
understand the environment within which the City's financial activities take
place and to help make comparison over time and with other governments.

Operating Information
These schedules contain information about the City's operations and resources
to help the reader understand how the City's financial information relates to
the services the City provides and the activities it performs.

Sources:  Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from
the comprehensive annual financial reports for the relevant year. The City implemented
GASB Statement No. 34 as of June 30, 2004; schedules presenting government-wide
information, include information beginning in that year.
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Fiscal Year

2010

$ 1,849,411
1,568,520
5.810.858

2011

$ 1,829,076
1,498,398
5,908,797

2012

$ 2,308,372
4,528,631
2.409.681

2013

$ 2,012,346
4,087,019
2,510,650

2014 (1) 2015

$ 1,857,866 $ 2,419,492
4,440,352 3,939,682
(1.756,001)  (8.820.376)

2016 2017

$ 2,861,071 $ 3,011,863
3,228,998 3,091,763
(9.305.978)  (9.198.224)

$ 9.228.789

$ 9.236.271

$ 9.246.684

$ 8.610,015

$ 4,542,217 $(2.461,202)

$(3.215.909) $ (3.094.598)

$ (2,877,539)

$ (990,783) $(2,692,970)

$ (488,623) $(3,222,304) §(2,742,485)

$(1,573,502) $(1,984,283)

2,864,195 2,287,718 2,289,356 2,446,070 2,445,921 2,446,530 2,446,094 2,447,781
3.649.199 3,672.627 6,180,214 5,049,590 §.308,203 7,722,700 6.449.364 7.568.558
$ 3.635.855 § 4.969.562 $ 5.776,600 § 7.007.037 $ 7.531.820 § 7.426.745 §$ 7.321.956 $ 8,032.056
$(1,028,128) $ 838,293 § (384,598) § 1,523,723 $(1,364,438) $§ (322,993) $ 1,287,569 $ 1,027,580
4,432,715 3,786,116 6,817,987 6,533,089 6,886,273 6,386,212 5,675,092 5,539,544
9.460,057 9,581.424 8.589.895 7.560,240 6,552,202 (1.097.676)  (2.856.614)  (1.629.666)
$12.864.644 $14,205,833 $15.023.284 $15,617.052 $12.074,037 $ 4965543 § 4.106.047 § 4,937.458
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Fiscal Year

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
$1,004,945  $1,149,706  $1,105,539 $787,118 $943,178 $975,485 $528,514  $478,702
3,517,162 3,461,796 3,371,428  3,249421 3,373,503 3,701,118 3,742,579 4,373,474
963,197 1,240,131 839,484 2,580,926 1,006,322 956,939 1,898,033 2,960,232
210,793 239,869 203,416 214,070 237,433 207,152 205,391 189,901
255,316 255,719 242,259 240,801 328,807 259,123 1,300,553 301,068
149,961 106,432 214,604 405,626 141,523 153,554 343,208 300,922
175,910 166,008 288,284 116,906 289,184 311,569 327,131 308,646
6367284  6619,661 6265014  7,594.868 6319950 6564940 8345409  8.912.945
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
171,886 227,608 248,776 236,959 219,979 217,642 274,051 278,398
2,126,843 1,997,499 1,976,560 2,041,448 1,989,849 2,091,691 2,166,356 2,217,023
52,561 67,755 47,435 48,214 57,744 57,029 79,069 85,691
4557201 4,341,673 4,093,592 4,052,356 4,170,689 3,766,602 4,180,922 4,171,912
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
120,890 93,502 0 0 0 0 0 0
136,267 311,089 442,571 429,898 350.476 386,181 354,273 314,412
7,165,648 7,039,126 6,808,934 6,808,875 6788737  6.519.145  7.054.671  7.067.436
$13,532,932  $13,658,787 $13,073,948 $14,403,743 $13,108,687 $13,084,085 $15,400,080 $15,980,381
$155,256 $303,864 $487,912 $12,830 $103,486 $106,054 $76,733 $126,315
172,430 201,942 127,275 68,428 52,593 136,678 83,481 119,412
49,047 61,704 86,309 436 1,715 4,448 197,411 1,581
9,491 8,749 1,761 75,200 117,560 94,793 84,744 87,614
22,472 20,461 24,152 99,123 178,785 74,784 88,125 57,475
94,344 86,654 95,094 33,288 52,538 38,249 48,694 12,607
748,635 741,230 799,904 994,075 1,096,669 925,909 1,030,102 823,166
162,515 600,507 155,084 1,736,845 896.293 738.606 987,566  2.475.395
1,414,190 2,025,111 1,777,491 3,020,225 2499639 2,119,521 2596856  3.703.565
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
58,284 70,632 70,075 78,488 81,680 97,128 69,394 72,722
2315996 2,271,480 2,358,189 2,335,499 2,280,947 2,194,458 2,188,967 2,755,870
69,783 100,728 92,731 92,732 92,732 85,004 86,132 69,227
4,723,849 4,667,746 4,431,883 4499718 4,581,073 3,945,118  4,182414 4,681,446
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
60,676 39,895 0 0 0 0 0 0
0 182,573 318,888 314,274 334,239 354,173 334,800 242,509
0 0 0 38,574 0 0 0 0
29,175 24,176 154,941 99,685 61,354 586,883 163,969 43,524
7257763 7,357,230  7.426,707 7458970  7.432,025 7262764  7.025.676  7.865.298
$8.671,953  $9,382,341  $9.204,198 $10,479,195  $9.931,664  $9.382.285  $9.622,532 $11,568.863
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Fiscal Year

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

($5,029,761) ($4,953,094) ($4,594,550) ($4,487,523) ($4,574,643) ($3,820,311) ($4,445,419) ($5,748,553) ($5,209,380)
577,548 92,115 318,104 617,773 650,095 643,288 743,619 (28,995) 797,862

(54,452,213) ($4,860,979) ($4,276,446) ($3.869,750) ($3,924,548) ($3,177,023) ($3,701,800) ($5,777,548) ($4,411,518)

$913,055  $829,452  $824,578  $757,463  $859,457  $1,455,797  $858,107  $877,382  $915,021
1,193,085 1,076,014 1,081,602 1,161,677 1,162,834 1,118,328 1,209,899 1,449,788 2,017,089
405,860 380,354 366,382 391,546 379,119 400,724 442376 455,099 507,981
45,197 48,855 60,840 49,988 24,493 49,776 24,242 36,767 34,409
235,283 231,796 227,101 220,339 226,004 221,939 237,758 241,985 278,286
70,723 188,948 105,350 79,625 45,175 39,786 37,731 42,996 40,227
1,488,666 298,882 409,887 304,260 428,017 384,924 358,806 349,848 0
474943 1,523,051 1,461,838 1,407,887 1,362,579 1,335,361 1,353,298 1,389,739 1,354,666
(35,749) 29,896 28,872 61,101 12,535 34,761 11,607 39,206 46,938
0 0 0 0 0 0 7,514 0 0

0 351,735 142,288 59,050 0 0 0 0 0

5.000 5000  (375.069) 5000  (562,239)  (410,379)  (55,164) 111,036 136,074
4,796,063 4,963,983 4,333,669 4,497,936 3,937,974 4,631,017 4,486,174 4,993,846 5,330,691
120,656 27,132 25,297 21,743 18,103 18,698 24,380 35,242 48,312
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
12,713 42,542 20,098 276,346 0 0 0 0 0
(5,000) (5,000) 375,069 (5,000) 562,239 410,379 55,164  (111,036)  (136,074)
128,369 64,674 420,464 293,089 580,342 429,077 79,544 (75,794) (87,762
4924432 5,028,657 4754133 4,791,025 4518316 5,060,094 4,565,718 4,918,052  5242,929

(233,698) 10,889  (260,881) 10,413 (636,669) 810,706 40,755  (754,707) 121,311
705917 156,789 738,568 910,862 1,230,437 1,072,365 823,163  (104,789) 710,100

$472,219  $167,678  $477,687  $921,275  $593,768  $1,883,071  $863,018  ($859,496) $831,411
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Fiscal Year

2011 2012 2013 2014(1) 2015 2016 2017
$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
0 0 0 0 0 0 0
550,746 270,650 286,411 445,196 104,869 101,417 90,344
17,931 18,011 0 18,145 18,196 18,196 18,375
123,142 0 0 0 0 0 0
13,776 25,212 14,776 17,066 63,462 63,462 113,679
1,537,145 1,837,349 1,846,833 1,859,126 2,319,757 2,521,280 3,054,261
2,242,740 2,151,222 2,148,020 2,339,533 2,506,284 2,704,355 3,276,659
0 0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 742 0 0 0 0
3,836,585 2,934,499 3,130,806 4,097,490 3,921,486 3,210,802 3,073,388
0 0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 44,599 596,858 632,817 351,353
(736.872) (156.372) (478.663) 0 0 0 0
$3.099.713  $2.778.127  $2.652.885 $4.142.089 $4.518.344  $3.843.619 §3.424.741
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Fiscal Year

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
$4,345,556  $4,537,578  $4,372,785 $4,498,960  $5,035,959 $4,495,698  $4,907,453  $5,104,539
100,231 92,956 100,385 74,183 101,323 78,350 86,142 87,084
34,400 26,667 20,246 31,203 24,301 95,579 99,371 94,449
26,242 17,202 11,477 27,504 54,042 45,589 72,112 83,168
812,150 1,299,139 990,261 2,722,868 1,985,090 1,293,514 1,999,435 3,280,340
67,644 60,693 36,831 50,400 14,824 27,271 2,910 2,910
331,481 98,356 76,106 66,244 71,367 74,323 83,214 151,018
719,459 602,319 651,310 43,270 249,062 150,233 261,704 45,330
6,437,163 6,734,910 6,259,401 7,514,632  7.535.968  6260,557  7.512,341  8.848.838
969,963 944,718 661,910 605,024 753,719 859,783 559,612 459,732
3,417,876 3,359,711 3,286,106 3,247,121 3,285,119 3,478,557 3,705,924 3,908,056
948,044 1,224,596 816,587 2,663,852 973,660 973,736 2,003,878 2,974,325
209,633 238,709 202,256 218,394 229,397 205,594 213,935 191,767
193,714 193,759 181,416 185,481 209,120 199,819 1,274,122 284,846
265,687 247,892 214,604 311,528 216,459 153,555 356,909 307,596
25,910 106,003 200,718 83,207 64,123 182,134 315,516 57,939
140,000 145,000 160,000 135,216 236,367 390,777 427,488 513,770
173,289 162,064 154,957 94,110 168,604 430,116 313,639 307,056
86,454 0 108,809 0 45,444 0
6,344,115 6,622,451 5965008 7,543,933 6245377 6874071 9216467 9,005,087
93,047 112,458 294,392 (29,301) 1,290,591  (613.514) (1.704,126)  (156.249)
492,437 358322 1,083,137 168,537 1,335,422 353,284 719,001 801,774
(487,437)  (733,391) (1,093,137)  (775,416) (1,058,395)  (455,583)  (693,029)  (494,940)
(1,787,682) 0 (4,798,191) 0 0 0
16,356 4,300 7,499 1,500 2,841
4,907,000 0 1,200,000 0
1,581,555 0 0 0 0 0
5000  (375,069)  (216,127)  (590,523) 390,136 (94,800) 1,227,472 309,675
98,047  (262,611) 78266  (619,823) 1.680.727  (708314)  (476.654)  153.426
5.0% 4.7% 7.0% 3.1% 8.3% 12.3% 8.8% 9.2%
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Schedule 6
City of Susanville

Direct and Overlapping Property Tax Rates,

Last Eighteen Fiscal Years
Rate per $1,000 of assessed value

City Direct Rate

Fiscal
Year

2000
2001
2002
2003
2004
2005
2006
2007
2008
2009
2010
2011
2012
2013
2014
2015
2016
2017
Source:
Lassen County

Notes:

Basic
Rate

1.0000
1.0000
1.0000
1.0000
1.0000
1.0000
1.0000
1.0000
1.0000
1.0000
1.0000
1.0000
1.0000
1.0000
1.0000
1.0000
1.0000
1.0000

Overlapping Rates (a)

Elementary  Elementary
School Bond Bond 2009

0.0605
0.0586
0.0606
0.0606
0.0598
0.0090
0.0096
0.0008

0.0279
0.0264
0.0268
0.0288
0.0324
0.0389
0.0379
0.0396
0.0396

The city's basic property tax rate is the same rate as Lassen County.
Refer to ScheduleS for explanation on direct rate limits.

(a) Overlapping rates are those of city and county governments that apply to property
owners within the City of Susanville. Not all overlapping rates apply to all Susanville

property owners.
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Total
Direct
Rate

1.0605
1.0586
1.0606
1.0606
1.0598
1.0090
1.0096
1.0008
1.0000
1.0279
1.0264
1.0268
1.0288
1.0324
1.0389
1.0379
1.0396
1.0396



Schedule 8
City of Susanville
Property Tax Levies and Collections,
Last Fifteen Fiscal Years
Collected within the

Fiscal Fiscal Year of the Levy Total Collections to Date
Year County Taxes  AB8 City ABS8 Collections
Ended Levied Allocation Percent Allocations Percentage in Subsequent Percentage
June 30 Factor Growth Fiscal Year  Amount of Levy Years Amount of Levy

2003 13,685,201 0.04209031  1.05503834  $586,769 $527,781 89.95% $54,571 $582,352 99.25%
2004 13,940,708 0.04209031  1.05503834  $597,587 $560,471 93.79% $29,938 $590,409 98.80%
2005 14,508,790 0.04118791  1.01843656  $632,964 $583,624 92.20% $32,765 $616,389 97.38%
2006 15,302,568 0.04136327  1.03366934  $684,095 $613,665 89.70% $48,911 $662,576 96.85%
2007 16,409,859 0.04168806  1.08078017  $752,391 $661,347 87.90% $43.224 $704,571 93.64%
2008 18,125,879 0.04150919  1.09983310  $818,267 $707,387 86.45% $67,882 $775,269 94.75%
2009 19,437,444 0.04209745  1.08755598  $872,175 $773,822 88.72% $67,890 $841,712 96.51%
2010 20,699,884 0.04252227  1.06588089  $909,755 $773,350 85.01% $61,820 $835,170 91.80%

2011 21,394,891 0.04143931  0.95963029  $856,069 $774,719 90.50% $29,476 $804,195 93.94%
2012 21,394,891 0.04141142  0.96529843 $861,126 $820,883 95.33% $37.125 $858,008 99.64%
2013 20,794,398 0.04141142  0.96946497  $834,831 $749,821 89.82% $76.606 $826,427 98.99%
2014 19,640,765 0.04092502  0.97446787  $782,647 $771,169 98.53% $9,654 $780,823 99.77%

2015 19,123,922 0.04124459 1.01338253 $793,121 $789,650 99.56% $6,153 $795,803 100.34%
2016 19,229,690 0.04128233 1.02660700 $814,223 $802,646 98.58% $29,151 $831,797 102.16%
2017 19,723,288 0.04093324 1.03134402 $839,744 $834,354 99.36% $34,541 $868,895 103.47%
Sources:
Lassen County Assessors Office

Notes:

Taxes levied are totals for Lassen County. Taxes are based on 1% of assessed value. Taxes are
distributed using an AB8 allocation factor. Therefore, city tax amounts will not compute using this
1% as a basis.

Property Tax amounts collected for 2014 will not match the CAFR due to the City receiving the PTA fees from the
County that were charged for the Property Tax In-Lieu payments and held in trust during the court disputes.
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Total Percentage

Primary of Property Per
Government Values (1) Capita (2)

12,665,211

35,224,866

38,205,467 9.05% 3,778
37,964,907 9.24% 4,123
37,662,549 8.45% 4,149
37,715,222 7.57% 4,143
37,451,123 6.92% 4,143
37,418,228 6.42% 4,165
38,810,575 6.27% 3,901
37,881,233 6.78% 4,150
37,389,223 6.88% 3,989
41,112,972 7.01% 4,089
40,222,195 7.75% 4,504
40,469,708 7.37% 4,651
39,400,718 7.17% 4,700
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Fiscal Year

2010

$582,945,868

25%

$145,736,467

15%

$21,860,470

$1,845,000

$20,015,470

8.4%

2011

$596,724,405

25%

$149,181,101

15%

$22,377,165

$1,780,000

$20,597,165

8.0%

2012

$572,065,132

25%

$143,016,283

15%

$21,452,442

$1,581,555

$19,870,887

7.4%

2013

$550,683,209

25%

$137,670,802

15%

$20,650,620

$1,541,339

$19,109,281

7.5%
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2014

$533,097,276

25%

$133,274,319

15%

$19,991,148

$1,457,972

$18,533,175

7.3%

2015

$530,454,231

25%

$132,613,558

15%

$19,892,034

$1,370,195

$18,521,839

6.9%

2016

$545,847,294

$0

$136,461,824

$0

$20,469,274

$2,480,708

$17,988,566

12.1%

2017

$564,468,210

$0

$141,117,053

$0

$21,167,558

$2,324,718

$18,842,840

11.0%



Schedule 12

City of Susanville
Ratios of General Bonded Debt Outstanding
Last Thirteen Fiscal Years

General Bonded Debt Outstanding

Percentage of

General CalPERS Actual Taxable
Fiscal Obligation Capital Refunding Value of Per
Year Bonds Leases Loans Total Properly Capita (a)
2005 2,155,000 87,798 2,242,798 0.58% 241
2006 2,095,000 52,238 2,147,238 0.52% 232
2007 2,035,000 19.549 2,054,549 0.46% 225
2008 1,975,000 1,975,000 0.40% 217
2009 1,910,000 1,910,000 0.35% 210
2010 1,845,000 1,845,000 0.32% 205
2011 1.780.000 1,780,000 0.30% 186
2012 1,581,555 1,581,555 0.28% 169
2013 1,541,339 1,541,339 0.28% 162
2014 1,457,972 4,859,000 6,316,972 1.18% 691
2015 1,370,195 4,666,000 6,036,195 1.14% 661
2016 2,480,708 4,448,000 6,928,708 1.27% 801
2017 2,324,718 4,221,000 6,545,718 1.16% 760
Notes:

Details regarding the City's ouistanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial

statements.

(a) Population data can be found in Schedule 13
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Miller /Fletcher Assessment Bonds

Special (a)

Assessment
Collections Debt Service
Principal Interest Coverage
72,163 50,000 98,750 0.49
572,406 55,000 94,744 3.82
417,794 55,000 90,481 2.87
228,473 60,000 86,025 1.56
112,407 65,000 81,181 0.77
138,964 70,000 75,950 0.95
236,383 75,000 70,331 1.63
146,991 80,000 64,325 1.02
124,871 90,000 57,738 0.85
106,282 95,000 55,069 0.71
129,324 105,000 42,819 0.87
128,052 110,000 34,488 0.89
149,933 120,000 25,565 1.03
1,799 130,000 15,888 0.01

City Hall Improvement Lease (b)
Vehicle Property Tax

License In Lieu of Debt Service
Fees VLF Principal Interest Coverage

952,051 0 55,000 107,930 5.84
120,328 988,907 60,000 106,605 6.66
174,072 1,138,723 60,000 105,015 7.96
116,605 1,256,457 60,000 103,215 8.41
83,753 1,396,408 60,000 101,265 9.18
63,206 1,488,666 65,000 99,043 9.46
54,597 1,523,051 65,000 96,573 9.76
85,151 1,461,838 65,000 94,005 9.73

9,022 1,407,887 70,000 91,235 8.79

40,216 40,747
83,367 53,215
87,777 50,273
88,707 47,943
90,989 44,036
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Schedule 15

City of Susanville

Principal Employers

Current Year and Nine Years Ago

2017 2008
Percentage Percentage
of Total City of Total City
Employer (b) Employees Rank  Employment (a} Employer Employees Rank  Employment (a)

High Desert State Prison 1251 1 28.37% High Desert State Prison 1511 1 31.48%
California Correctional Center 1061 2 24.06% California Correctional Center 1091 2 22.73%
Lassen County 434 3 9.84% Lassen County 464 3 9.67%
Lassen Community College 295 4 6.69% Wal-Mart 226 4 4.71%
Banner Lassen Medical Center 237 5 537% Banner Lassen Medical Center 200 5 4.17%
Wal-Mart 176 6 3.99% Diamond Mountain Casino 159 6 3.31%
Susanville School District 150 7 3,40% Lassen Community College 153 7/ 3.19%
Diamond Mountain Casino 148 8 3.36% Susanville Indian Rancheria 143 8 2.98%
Susanville Indian Rancheria 109 9 2.47% Susanville School District 141 9 2.94%
Northeastern Rural Health 102 10 231% Lassen Union High School 122 10 2.54%
Safeway 100 11 227% Northeastern Rural Health 110 11 2.29%
City of Susanville 89 12 2.02% Countryvilla Riverview Rehab 105 12 2.19%
Lassen Union High School 81 13 1.84% Safeway 100 13 2.08%
Lassen Nursing & Rehab 63 14 1.43% City of Susanville 66 14 1.38%
Susanville Supermarket 52 15 1.18% Susanville Supermarket 52 15 1.08%

4348 98.59% 4643 96.73%
Source:

Employment Development Departmeni, Lassen County Chamber of Commerce
Notes:

(a) Total Labor Force for the City is 4410 (2017) and 4800 (2008)
(b) Employers listed are within the city limits or have been annexed.
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Fiscal Year

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

2.5 2.5 1.25 1.75 3.5 3.5 3.5 3.5 3.5

1.5 1.5 1 1 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5
6 5 5 4.5 4 5 5 5 5
20 19 18 18 17 19 20 20 20
11 11 9 9 9 9 9 9 9
3 3 3.75 3.75 3 3 3 3 3

2 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
18 18 18 18 20 20 21 21 21

64 62 57 57 59 62 64 64 64
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Fiscal Year

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
332 262 260 342 264 317 336 174 322
1145 716 574 884 915 843 788 429 858
483 532 609 712 663 487 496 546 529
256 248 159 122 114 74 111 124 267
790 834 564 432 469 182 374 361 169
1467 1552 1586 770 784 853 1137 1193 1259
67 81 51 46 47 49 49 69 71
201 252 200 44 47 122 124 105 117
0 ] 1.2 121 22 2.1 0 0.79 3.73
168 159 280 187 147 205 348 197 400
4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4
22 0 0 0 0 2 2 4 2
3173 1931 1833 1949 2121 2708 1849 1547 1768
5500 5500 3484 4258 3637 5230 5041 3859 3643
84 71 63 90 134 174 78 52 39
*
472 553 579 548 565 591 505 561 633
980 887 913 1116 1403 1795 1595 1795 1837.7
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Fiscal Year

2008

54

532

147

O == LN

403
4000
3788

59
2462

2009

54

532

—

410
4000
3797

59
2546

2010

54

532

147

O = = WN

414
4000
3807

60
2630

2011

54

532

416
4000
3800

61
2694

2012 2013 2014
1 1 1
13 13 13
1 1 1

7 7
54 54 54
0 0 0
532 532 534
0 0 0
147 147 147
2 2 2
3 3 3
1 1 1
1 1 1
0 0 0
65 65 65

422 429 432

4000 4000 4000

3803 3803 3805
61 61 61

2785 2901 3075
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2015

54

534

147

O == LN

65
434
4000
3807

61
3153

2016

—

54

534

147

O == W N

65
434
4000
3811

61
3180

2017

54

534

147

O = o= W N

65
434
4000
3813

61
3219



Fiscal Year

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
514.31 478.38 519.60 548.43 487.15 485.07 414.54 446.83
190.50 190.24 191.80 225.28 202.28 197.26 158.21 169.11
704.8 668.6 7114 773.7 689.43 682.34 572,75 615.94
$2.315.996  $2,271.480  $2,358,189  $2,333,534  $2,280,209  $2,185,204 $2.187.569 $2,725,529
0.0033 0.0034 0.0033 0.0030 0.0033 0.0032 0.0038 0.0044
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Schedule 21

City of Susanville

Water Department

Top Ten Water Customers
Current Year and Nine Years Ago

2017
Percent of
Water Total Water

Water Customer Charges (a) Revenues
Lassen County $85,767 3.15% Lassen County
Lassen Union High School District $58,134 2.13% Susanville Indian Rancheria
City of Susanville $42,367 1.55% Lassen High School
Diamond View School $26,283 0.96% Lassen County Fairgrounds
Hidden Acres Mobile Home Park $24,310 0.89% Hidden Acres
Susanville Indian Rancheria/Casino $18,297 0.67% Meadowview School
Meadowview Elementary School $14,697 0.54% Diamond View School
Citrus Manor Apartments $11,391 0.42% Millview Apartments
Drumm, Marie & Fred $11,059 041% Meadowbrook Apartments
Mountain View Mobile Home Park $10,239 0.38% Mathfallu Properties

$302,545 11.10%

Source:
City of Susanville Finance Department

Notes:
(a)Total Water Revenue equals charges for services as found in schedule 2.
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2008
Percent of
Water Total Water
Charges (a) Revenues

$55,278 2.70%
$29,656 1.45%
$23,638 1.15%
$22,862 1.12%
$16,240 0.79%
$13,359 0.65%
$11,101 0.54%
$10,474 0.51%
$10,467 0.51%
$9,254 0.45%
$202,330 9.87%



Fiscal Year

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
937,912 969,365 970,855 989,815 1,018,373 937,529 1,002,170 1,280,163
1,092,072 1,145,538 1,059,126 1,072,065 1,133,858 992,290 1,059,923 1,183,869
2,029,984 2,114,903 2,029,981 2,061,880 2,152,231 1,929,819 2,062,093 2,464,032
$4,723,849 $4,667,746 $4,431,883 $4,499,459 $4,580,771 $3,942,591 $4,181,963 $4,681,092

$2.33 $2.21 $2.18 $2.18 $2.13 $2.04 $2.03 $1.90
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Schedule 24

City of Susanville

Gas Department

Top Ten Gas Customers

Current Year and Nine Years Ago

2017 2008

Percent of Percent of

Gas Total Gas Gas Total Gas

Gas Customer Charges (a) Revenues Gas Customer Charges (a) Revenues
Lassen County $277,283 5.92% Lassen Community College 361,433 7.77%
Banner Lassen Hospital $219,657 4.69% Banner Lassen Hospital 301,945 6.49%
Lassen Community College $199,374 4.26% Susanville Indian Rancheria/Casino 97,261 2.09%
Susanville Indian Rancheria/Casino $87,313 1.87% Susanville Garden Apartments 83,157 1.79%
Lassen Union High School District $74,897 1.60% Diamond View School 68,154 1.47%
Susanville Garden Apartments $50,269 1.07% Safeway 67,419 1.45%
McKinley Elementary School $46,011 0.98%  Northeaster Rural Health 61,220 1.32%
Safeway $37,129 0.79% Lassen Union High School 60,052 1.29%
CalFire $36,659 0.78% California Dept of Forestry 46,948 1.01%
Northeastern Rural Health $36,095 0.77% McKinley Elementary School 46,180 0.99%
$1,064,687 22.74% $1,193,769  25.67%

Source:

City of Susanville Finance Department

Notes:

(a)Total Gas Revenue equals charges for services as found in schedule 2.
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AGENDA ITEM NO. _9C

Reviewed by: (‘\/ Interim City Administrator X __Motion only
City Attorney Public Hearing
____Resolution
Ordinance
Information
Submitted by: Dan Newton, Interim City Administrator
Action Date: December 20, 2017

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM

SUBJECT: Update on Local Sales and Use Tax/Transactional Use Tax increase
PRESENTED BY: Dan Newton, Interim City Administrator

SUMMARY: At its November 1, 2017 meeting, City Council directed staff to open
negotiations with the County and develop an equitable agreement to increase sales tax, starting at
one-half percent. City and County staff have met on this item and the Lassen County Board of
Supervisors is discussing the item on December 19, 2017. Staff would like to continue the
discussion on the potential sales tax measure and update the council on the Board of Supervisors
discussion.

General Information: A Transaction and Use Tax is a local tax that is added to the Sales and Use
Tax currently charged on qualifying local purchases. This tax is currently 7.25% in the City of
Susanville and ranges statewide from 7.25% to 10.25%. The process is governed by the California
Elections Code and can generally be initiated through a voter petition or by a 2/3 vote of the City
Council. The City Council would do this by approving an item that would place a proposed increase
on either a regular election or a special election for voter approval. The City traditionally consolidates
their elections with Lassen County with the next regular election falling in June, 2018 (Primary
Election) and November, 2018 (General Election). To qualify to have the item on the next county-
wide election, it is recommended that the City submit the documents in January 2018, but no later
than March 9. The City could also pursue a Special Election that would be carried out by and atthe
sole cost of the City. In general, the election would be held no less than 88 days after action by the
City Council with no more than one special election being held every 180 days.

Irrespective of the type of election, the tax initiatives come in two forms: general purpose, which
requires a 50% plus one vote for approval and special purpose, which requires two-thirds/super-
majority/66.67% of the vote for approval. A special purpose tax would be restricted to a specific
purpose such as parks, streets or public safety etc. and requires a higher voter threshold, whereas a
general purpose tax would be allocated based on the needs of the community and the priorities of
the Council.

While many citizens oppose tax measures there has been considerable support in recent years for
Transaction and Use Tax increases as the voters know that the revenue must be spent in their local
communities on the services that they use and are not diverted to other parts of the state. In the last
year, over 80% of the general tax measures of 0.5% or less have passed in California. When you
take into account that many of these measures were in addition to existing sales tax measures
already approved, it demonstrates strong support for this type of proposal.



In addition to many other cities, counties, schools and special districts that have considered
Transaction and Use Tax increases, Lassen County is also considering a similar proposal. While the
County has not yet taken any final action on placing a proposal on the ballot, the proposal could
come in many forms and could apply to the entire county including the incorporated City Limits of the
City of Susanville. Staff is currently in discussions with the County to identify opportunities to
coordinate these efforts through a local tax sharing agreement that could be tied to a proposal to
increase the Sales and Use Tax.

It will also be important to educate the community on the current distribution of the Sales and Use
Tax that they currently pay and how little of that money stays local as a result of current state law. As
of January 1, 2017, state law allocated the mandatory 7.25 percent in the following way:

¢7.25% - State

©3.9375% - State of California's General Fund per tax code sections 6051 and 6201

¢0.25% - State of California's General Fund per tax code sections 6051.3 and 6201.3

©0.50% - State of California's Local Public Safety Fund for Criminal Justice Services

¢0.50% - State of California's Local Revenue Fund for Health and Social Services per tax code
sections 6051.2 and 6201.2

¢1.0625% - the state's Local Revenue Fund - General Purpose per tax code sections 6051.15 and
6201.15

¢1.25% - Local revenue per tax code section 7203.1
¢0.25% - Local County - Transportation funds
¢1.00% - Local city/county - Operating funds

FISCAL IMPACT: None at this time.

ACTION
REQUESTED: Provide direction to staff

ATTACHMENTS: Sales and use tax dollars estimate.



Sales & Use Tax Dollars

H:/misc.sales & Use Tax proposal.xis

Estimated total taxable sales:

10/26/2017 14:44 $178,000,000
Current Proposed Current Proposed
Jurisdiction Rate Sales Tax Rate Sales Tax Jurisdiction Rate Sales Tax Rate Sales Tax
State of CA 6.00% $10,680,000 6.00% $10,680,000 State of CA 6.00% $10,680,000 6.00% $10,680,000
Lassen County Transp. Fund 0.25% $445,000 0.25% $445,000 Lassen County Transp. Fund 0.25% $445,000 0.25% $445,000
City of Susanville (current) 1.00% $1,780,000 1.00% $1,780,000 City of Susanville (current) 1.00% $1,780,000 1.00% $1,780,000
City of Susanville (proposed) 0.50% $880,000 City of Susanville (proposed) 0.25% 445,000
7.25% $13,405,781 7.75% 7.25% $12,905,000 7.50% $13,350,000
Population Per capita ave. Additional Cost
EXAMPLE: Taxable Sales of 1,000.00 10,000.00 EXAMPLE: Taxable Sales of 1,000.00 10,000.00
Current Tax 72.50 725.00 Current Tax 72.50 725.00
Proposed Tax 5.00 50.00 Proposed Tax 2.50 25.00
1,077.50 10,775.00 1,075.00 10,750.00
TAX SPLIT: Tax Tax Percent TAX SPLIT Tax Tax Percent
State 62.50 625.00 6.25% State 62.50 625.00 6.25%
County 2.50 25.00 0.25% County 2.50 25.00 0.25%
City 7.50 75.00 0.75% City 7.50 75.00 0.75%
City (proposed) 5.00 50.00 0.50% City (proposed) 2.50 25.00 0.25%
77.50 775.00 7.75% 75.00 750,00 7.50%
Sales and Use Tax
BState of CA
BLassen County Transp. Fund
ECity of Susanville (current)
71 OCity of Susanville (proposed)
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AGENDA ITEM NO. __ 9D

Reviewed by: ﬂ’/lnterim City Administrator X _Motion only
City Attorney Public Hearing

Resolution
Ordinance
Information

Submitted by: Dan Newton, Interim City Administrator

Action Date: December 20, 2017

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM
SUBJECT: Joint meeting with County Board of Supervisors

PRESENTED BY:

SUMMARY:

FISCAL IMPACT:

ACTION
REQUESTED:

ATTACHMENTS:

Dan Newton, Interim City Administrator

The Lassen County Board of Supervisors is interested in conducting a joint
meeting with the Susanville City Council. The proposed items for discussion
are:

1) Sales Tax

2) Marijuana

3) Transportation

4) Economic Development
5) Shared Services

The proposed date for the meeting is Tuesday, January 23 at 3:00 PM.

None.

Direction to Staff

None



Reviewed by: Wlnterim City Administrator
City Attorney

Submitted by:

Action Date:

SUBJECT:

PRESENTED BY:

SUMMARY:

FISCAL IMPACT:

ACTION
REQUESTED:

ATTACHMENTS:

AGENDA ITEM NO. _13A

Motion only
Public Hearing
Resolution
Ordinance
Information

X
Dan Newton, Interim City Administrator
December 20, 2017

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM

Susanville Deer Population

Dan Newton, Interim City Administrator

Some members of the Community have expressed concern over the deer
population in Susanville. Some specific concerns are destroyed gardens,
lawns and fences; pets being attacked; and safety of children.

The City's role in assessing and addressing the deer population in Susanville
has not been discussed at City Council in recent years. Staff has reached out

to the California Department of Fish and Wildlife for guidance on this item
and would like direction from Council regarding next steps.

None.

Direction to Staff

None



